
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
855 W. BASE LINE ROAD, RIALTO, CA 92376

PH: (909) 875-1804
WWW.WVWD.ORG 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Thursday, July 17, 2025, 6:00 PM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Gregory Young, President
Daniel Jenkins, Vice President

Estevan Bennett, Director
Angela Garcia, Director
Kelvin Moore, Director

"In order to comply with legal requirements for posting of agendas, only those items filed with the Board
Secretary's office by noon, on Wednesday a week prior to the following Thursday meeting, not requiring
departmental investigation, will be considered by the Board of Directors."

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at 855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, CA 92376, or
you may join the meeting using Zoom by clicking this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public
comment may be submitted via Zoom, by telephone by calling the following number and access code: Dial:
(888) 475-4499, Access Code: 840-293-7790, or via email to administration@wvwd.org.

If you require additional assistance, please contact administration@wvwd.org.

1

https://print.agendalink.app/agenda/WWW.WVWD.ORG
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790
mailto:administration@wvwd.org
mailto:administration@wvwd.org


CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS

APPROVAL OF ANY BOARD MEMBERS REQUESTS FOR REMOTE PARTICIPATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

OPENING PRAYER

CLOSED SESSION

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE
Government Code Section 54957

2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-EXISTING LITIGATION Paragraph (1) of
subdivision (d) of Government Code Section 54956.9 Name of case: Naseem Farooqi v. West Valley Water District
et al.

ADOPT AGENDA

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Any person wishing to speak to the Board of Directors on matters listed or not listed on the agenda, within its
jurisdiction, is asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the Board Secretary, if you are attending in
person. For anyone joining on Zoom, please wait for the Board President’s instruction to indicate that you would
like to speak. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Under the State of California Brown Act, the Board of
Directors is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda. Comments
related to noticed Public Hearing(s) and Business Matters will be heard during the occurrence of the item.

Public communication is the time for anyone to address the Board on any agenda item or anything under the
jurisdiction of the District. Also, please remember that no disruptions from the crowd will be tolerated. If someone
disrupts the meeting, they will be removed.

PRESENTATIONS

Retirement Presentation for Joe Schaack, Chief Water Systems Operator

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. 1. June 26, 2025 Adjourned Regular Board Meeting Minutes Pg 5

2. Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC for John Previti Ave 
(Ventana South) Improvements. Pg 10

BUSINESS MATTERS

Consideration Of:

1. Award of Contract for Lord Ranch Facilities Project Pg 37

2. Change Order No. 1 with Merlin Johnson Construction Inc. for the Zone 7 - 18-Inch Transmission Main 
Crossing Ontario I-15 Freeway Project Pg 87

3. Award of Contract for the Bloomington Alleyway Main Replacement Project – Phase 3C Pg 92

2



4. Change Order No. 9 with PCL Construction Inc. and Amendment to GHD Inc. Task Order for the Oliver P. 
Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project Pg 147

REPORTS

1. Board Committee Reports

2. Board Members

3. General Manager

4. Legal Counsel
• Updates on current legal topics/best practice

5. Public Outreach Government Affairs

6. Board Secretary

UPCOMING MEETINGS

• July 24, 2025 – Eng, Ops, and Planning Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.
• July 28, 2025 – External Affairs Committee Meeting at 12:00 p.m.
• July 29, 2025 – Executive Committee Meeting at 5:30 p.m.
• Aug 4, 2025 – Safety & Technology Committee Meeting at 5:00 p.m.
• Aug 7, 2025 - Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.
• Aug 11, 2025 – Finance Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.
• Aug 12, 2025 – Executive Committee Meeting at 5:30 p.m.
• Aug 13, 2025 – Human Resources Committee Meeting at 6:00 pm
• Aug 14, 2025 – Policy Committee Meeting at 6:00 pm
• Aug 21, 2025 - Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 p.m.
• Aug 25, 2025 – External Affairs Committee Meeting at 12:00 p.m.
• Aug 28, 2025 – Eng, Ops, and Planning Committee Meeting at 6:00 p.m.

UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENTS

• June 29th - Walk for Warriors
• July 17th - Bloomington Movies in the Park
• July 18th - Rialto Movies in the Park
• July 31st - Bloomington Movies in the Park
• August 5th - National Night Out -Fontana
• August 5th - National Night Out - Rialto
• August 5th - National Night Out - Bloomington
• August 5th - National Night Out – Colton
• August 15th – Bloomington Concerts in the Park
• August 28th - Supervisor Jesse Armendarez Open House
• August 29th - Bloomington Concerts in the Park

UPCOMING EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES

• July 18th – SCWC Quarterly Luncheon
• August 8th – BIA Water Conference
• August 25th – CSDA Annual Conference (Monterey)

ADJOURN

3



Please Note:

Material related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 855 W. Baseline, Rialto, during normal
business hours.  Also, such documents are available on the District’s website at www.wvwd.org subject to
staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to attend or participate in the above-
agendized public meeting should be directed to the Board Secretary, Elvia Dominguez, at least 72 hours in
advance of the meeting to ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation.  Ms. Dominguez
may be contacted by telephone at (909) 875-1804 ext. 703, or in writing at the West Valley Water District,
P.O. Box 920, Rialto, CA 92377-0920.

DECLARATION OF POSTING: 

I declare under penalty of perjury, that I am employed by the West Valley Water District and posted the
foregoing Agenda at the District Offices on July 10, 2025.

Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 

Date Posted: July 10, 2025

4

http://www.wvwd.org/


WVWD 

Minutes: 6/26/25 

ADJOURNED REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

of  the 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

June 26, 2025 

OPENING CEREMONIES 

Call to Order – 6:01 p.m. 
Roll Call of Board Members 

Attendee Name Present Absent Arrived 
Directors 

Angela Garcia    
Estevan Bennett  

6:10 P.M. 6:10 P.M.

Kelvin Moore  
Daniel Jenkins  
Gregory Young  

General Counsel 
Jeff Ferre  

Staff 
John Thiel  
Jose Velasquez  
Linda Jadeski  

 Haydee Sainz  
Joanne Chan  
Elvia Dominguez  
Socorro Pantaleon  
Rocky Welborn  
Gustavo Gutierrez  
Albert Clinger  

Approval of Any Board Member Requests for Remote Participation - None.  
Pledge of Allegiance – The Pledge of Allegiance was led by  Vice President Jenkins.
Opening Prayer –Pastor Townsend.  

CLOSED SESSION

Public Participation on closed session matters. 

President Young inquired if anyone from the public would like to speak on closed session items. No 
requests were received to speak; therefore President Young closed the public comment period. 

5



WVWD 

Minutes: 6/26/25 

The Board entered into closed session at 6:03 p.m. 
 

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
Government Code Section 54957 
Title: General Manager 
 

The Board adjourned the closed session at 7:14 p.m. to conduct the business portion of  the meeting 
which commenced at 7:16 p.m. with all Board members present. 

Report out of Closed Session 

General Counsel Ferre reported that the Board discussed the closed session item, and no reportable 
action was taken. 

ADOPT AGENDA 
 
Motion to adopt the agenda. 
 
RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Daniel Jenkins 
SECONDER: Kelvin Moore 
AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Greg Young 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

None. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

President Young inquired if  anyone from the public would like to speak. No requests were received 
to speak, therefore President Young closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Motion to approve Consent Calendar item #1 - #8. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Daniel Jenkins 
SECONDER: Kelvin Moore  
AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Greg Young 

1. May 15, 2025 and June 5, 2025 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2. Approval of Blanket Purchase Orders for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 

6



WVWD 

Minutes: 6/26/25 

3. Monthly Cash Disbursements Report - May 2025 

4. Monthly Revenue and Expenditures Report - May 2025 

5. Purchase Order Report - May 2025 

6. Treasurer's Report - April 2025 

7. Agreement with Calgon Carbon Corporation for Granular Activated Carbon Media Replacement 
at the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility 

8. New Job Classification - Project Manager 

BUSINESS MATTERS 

1. Fiscal Year 2025-26 Proposed Operating and Capital Budget 

The presentation was given by Chief  Financial Officer Velasquez. 
 
The Board thanked Mr. Velasquez and staff  for their efforts in completing the fiscal year budget 
and for the presentation. 

 Motion to 1. Adopt Resolution 2025-09 titled, “A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRCTORS OF THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTIRCT ADOPTING THE ANNUAL 
OPERATING AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET FOR 2025-2026”; 2. Approve and 
adopt the FY 2025-26 Organization Chart; and 3. Approve and adopt the FY 2025-26 Salary 
Schedule 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 
MOVER: Daniel Jenkins 
SECONDER: Angela Garcia 
AYES: Estevan Bennett, Angela Garcia, Kelvin Moore, Daniel Jenkins, Greg Young 

 

REPORTS - LIMITED TO 5 MINUTES MAXIMUM (Presentations or handouts must be 
provided to Board Members in advance of the Board Meeting). 

1. Board Committee Reports 

Director Garcia gave an External Affairs Committee update. 
 
Director Bennett gave an Engineering, Operations, and Planning Committee update 
 
Vice President Jenkins gave a report on the Finance Committee. 
 
 
 
 

7



WVWD 

Minutes: 6/26/25 

2. Board Members 

Vice President Jenkins reported on his attendance at the ASBCSD Monthly Meeting; the 
Sacramento Legislative Advocacy trip he took with Director Garcia, and the Rialto Juneteenth 
event he attended.  

Director Garcia also reported on Sacramento Legislative Advocacy trip and her attendance at 
Fontana City Councilmember Robert’s Birthday event. 

Director Moore reported on attending the ASBCSD Monthly Meeting; the San Bernardino Valley 
Municipal Water District meeting; WELL meeting; and the Rialto Juneteenth event. 

Director Bennett reported on his attendance at the Rialto City Council meeting. 

President Young reported on his attendance at Fontana City Councilmember Robert’s Birthday 
event; the Rialto Juneteenth event; and wished his parents a happy 56th wedding anniversary. 

3. General Manager 

General Manager Thiel provided an update on recruitment; announced the vacancy of  the Support 
Services Supervisor and retirement of  Chief  Operator Joe Schaak; reported on upcoming water rate 
study workshop in 6-8 weeks; gave an update on Engineering Capital Improvement Projects; 
upcoming quarterly report; regional coordination partnerships; the Strategic Plan update planned for 
August; and mentioned completion of  his second year as General Manager highlighting some 
successes and his appreciation to staff  and the Board. 

4. Legal Counsel 

None.  

5. Government & Legislative Affairs 

Manager of  Public Outreach and Government Affairs Pantaleon gave a legislative, community 
partnership, and a community outreach update.  

6.  Board Secretary 

Board Secretary Dominguez provided an update on upcoming Board meetings and events.  

ADJOURN 

President Young adjourned the meeting at 7:55 p.m.  
 
 

8



WVWD 

Minutes: 6/26/25 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 
 

 

 
 

9





STAFF REPORT

DATE:  July 17, 2025

TO:   Board of Directors

FROM:  Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT:   Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC for John Previti
Ave (Ventana South) Improvements.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply

A. Increase System Capacity for Anticipated Growth

MEETING HISTORY:

06/25/2025 - Special Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting 

BACKGROUND:

HDO 4, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of land located south of Duncan Canyon Road, west of Citrus Avenue,
along John Previti Avenue (formerly Lytle Creek Road) in the City of Fontana. The Developer has planned to
construct the project in several phases, with each planning area containing multiple mixed-use residential and
commercial products known collectively as Ventana (“Development”). In developing this land, new water mains and
related facilities must be installed to allow for domestic, irrigation and fire connections to service the Development.
More specifically, an extension of approximately 3,100 linear feet of 12-inch ductile iron pipe will need to be
installed from the project’s northern Duncan Canyon Road frontage to its southern property line on Lytle Creek
Road.

DISCUSSION:

West Valley Water District (“District”) and the Developer wish to enter into a Developer-Installed Water System
Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement (“Agreement”) to construct the water facilities needed to
supply water to the Development. This Agreement outlines the responsibilities of the Developer in constructing
facilities, including insurance, indemnification and bonding requirements as well as conveyance and acceptance of
the water system by the District.  Included as Exhibit A is a copy of the Water System Infrastructure Installation
and Conveyance Agreement for this development which also includes the location of the Development.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact to the District.

REQUESTED ACTION:
10



 
Staff recommends to the Board of Directors to:

1. Approve the Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with HDO 4, LLC for John
Previti Ave (Ventana South) Improvements

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - WICA.pdf

11

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d71c084a0ff006ebc6d14%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf?alt=media&token=aa865170-d0d3-4b6f-be70-9795646a77b7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d71c084a0ff006ebc6d14%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf?alt=media&token=aa865170-d0d3-4b6f-be70-9795646a77b7
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d71c084a0ff006ebc6d14%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf?alt=media&token=aa865170-d0d3-4b6f-be70-9795646a77b7


Attachment A 

12



1 
D25011 

WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE 
INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT 

 

 This water system infrastructure installation and conveyance agreement (“Agreement”) is 
entered into and effective as of ________________ by and between HDO 4, LLC (“Developer”), 
and WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (“District”) who agree as follows: 

  The Developer is the owner of certain land described as The Ventana and as more fully (or 
further) shown on Exhibit "A".  In developing this land, the Developer is desirous of obtaining a 
public water supply adequate for domestic uses and public fire protection purposes and is desirous 
of integrating that water system into the District’s public water system. 

In order to provide facilities for a water supply to said land, it is the intention of the parties 
to this Agreement that the Developer shall furnish and install those water mains, fire hydrants, 
service laterals, water meters and valves, valve boxes, and all other appurtenant fittings and 
facilities required for a complete water system to serve the land shown on Exhibit "A".  

 In order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the terms and conditions herein 
contained, the parties further agree as follows: 

1. DESIGN 

 1.1. Developer shall design and construct, at the Developer's sole expense, the water 
facilities and appurtenances required to serve the development in accordance with final District-
approved plans known as Ventana John Previti Ave (South Improvements), as approved and 
attached herein as Exhibit "B" and in accordance with District-approved design standards and 
specifications, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

 1.2. The water system design shall be by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of 
California, and in accordance with the District's Rules and Regulations, latest edition (the “Rules 
and Regulations”), the District's Standards for Domestic Water Facilities and Standard Drawings 
herein included by reference, all applicable District ordinances and policies and all City, County, 
State of California, and Federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and other legal 
requirements of all government bodies having jurisdiction over said construction and property (all 
of the foregoing requirements in this paragraph being collectively referred to herein at times as 
“Legal Requirements”). 

 1.3. The District, at Developer's expense, shall review Developer's plans for the purpose of 
ensuring the adequacy of the design and conformance with the District's standards and 
specifications.  The District reserves the right to add, delete, modify, change or amend any or all 
the plans and specifications. 

 1.4. In the event that the property to be developed includes multiple residential, 
condominiums, commercial or industrial uses, all site plans, grading plans, improvement plans, 
and any available plumbing plot plans shall be furnished to the District by Developer. 

13



2 
D25011 

 1.5. The District makes no warranties as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of 
the plans and specifications.  The accuracy, adequacy, suitability, and correctness of the water 
system design shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer. 

2. CONSTRUCTION 

 2.1. Developer shall perform, or caused to be performed, all construction of the water 
system infrastructure installation pursuant to the approved water system plans, legal requirements, 
and other applicable requirements. 

 2.2 The performance of this Agreement shall commence within ninety (90) calendar days 
from the executed date of this Agreement and shall be completed within one (1) year from the 
estimated construction start date. 

 2.3. Time is of the essence in this Agreement; provided that, in the event good cause is 
shown therefore, the general manager of the District (“General Manager”) may extend the time for 
completion of the water system installation.  Any such extension may be granted without the 
notice to Developer's surety, and extensions so granted shall not relieve the surety's liability on the 
bond to secure faithful performance of this Agreement.  The General Manager shall be the sole 
and final judge as to whether or not good cause has been shown to entitle Developer to an 
extension. 

 2.4. The Developer and its contractor and subcontractors shall attend a pre-construction 
meeting with the District no less than two (2) working days prior to commencement of 
construction. 

 2.5. No work on water facilities shall commence prior to the completion of all required 
curbs and gutters. 

3. LICENSES AND PERMITS 

 3.1. Developer, and all of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors warrants it 
possesses, or shall obtain, and maintain during the term of this Agreement any and all licenses, 
permits, qualifications, insurance and approval of whatever nature that are legally required of 
Developer, its contractors, and all subcontractors to practice its profession, skill or business.   

 3.2. The work to be performed under this Agreement, except meter installations by the 
District, shall be performed by Developer, or a contractor or subcontractor who is pre-approved by 
the District and is licensed under the laws of the State of California in the specialty Class of “C-
34” Pipeline or Class “A” General Engineering.  A copy of the contract between Developer and 
the selected pre-approved contractor and all subcontractors shall be submitted to the District for 
review and approval attached herein as Exhibit “C”.  

 3.3. Excavation/resurfacing permits shall be secured by Developer at Developer's 
expense.  Permits/easements to install, maintain and operate water system facilities in private 
property shall be secured by Developer at Developer's sole expense prior to construction. 

14



3 
D25011 

 3.4. Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the 
Regional Water Quality Board as required for construction or pipeline flushing and disinfection. 

 3.5  Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and 
adhering to the California Environmental Quality Act. 

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 4.1. The following insurance requirements have been adopted by the District and shall be 
applicable to this Agreement.  These requirements supersede the insurance requirements set forth 
in any other reference of the District, and to the extent of any conflict, the specified requirements 
herein shall prevail. 

 4.2. Developer shall ensure that Developer’s contractors conform to the following 
insurance requirements and that all required documents are submitted to the District at the time of 
Agreement submittal:  Developer shall ensure that its contractors and all subcontractors shall 
purchase and maintain insurance in amounts equal to the requirements set forth in (a) through (d) 
below, and shall not commence work under this Agreement until all insurance required under this 
heading is obtained in a form acceptable to the District, nor shall Developer allow any contractor 
or subcontractor to commence construction pursuant to a contract or subcontract until all insurance 
required of the contractor and any subcontractors has been obtained. 

   a. General Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, a standard form of either 
Comprehensive General Liability insurance or Commercial General Liability insurance (“General 
Liability Insurance”) providing the following minimum limits of liability: Combined single limit 
of $1.0 million per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and property 
damage with $2.0 million minimum aggregate, separate for this project as evidenced by 
endorsement.  The insurance shall include coverage for each of the following hazards: Premises-
Operations; Owners and Contractors Protective; Broad Form Property Damage contractual for 
Specific Contract; Severability of Interest or Cross-Liability; XCU Hazards; and Personal Injury – 
With the "Employee" Exclusive Deleted. 

   b. Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its 
contractor and all subcontractors shall maintain a policy of automotive/vehicle liability insurance 
on a commercial auto liability form covering owned, non-owned and hired automobiles providing 
the following minimum limits of liability:  Combined single limit of liability of $1.0 million per 
accident for Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage (“Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance”). 

   c. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor 
and all subcontractors shall provide such workers' compensation insurance with statutory 
minimum amounts of coverage, as required by the California Labor Code and other applicable 
law, and including employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 
(“Workers’ Compensation Insurance”).  Such Workers' Compensation Insurance shall be endorsed 
to provide for a waiver of subrogation against the District. 

15



4 
D25011 

   d. Excess Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all 
subcontractors shall provide a policy providing excess coverage in a face amount necessary when 
combined with the primary insurance, to equal the minimum requirements for General Liability 
Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance.   

 4.3. The insurances provided for in Section 4.2 and its subsections above are subject to all 
of the following conditions: 

   a. The insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies 
acceptable to the District, and shall be licensed by the State of California to do business on the 
lines of insurance specified.  The insurers must also have an "A-" Policyholder's rating" and a 
"financial rating" of at least Class VII in accordance with the most current A.M. Best's Rating 
Guide. 

   b. Developer’s contractor and subcontractors may satisfy the limit requirements in 
a single policy or multiple policies.  Any such additional policies written as excess insurance shall 
not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or primary policy. 

   c. Any costs associated with a self-insured program, deductibles, or premium 
rating programs that determine premium based on loss experience shall be for the account of 
Developer, Developer’s contractor and subcontractors, and the District shall not be required to 
participate in any such loss.  If any such programs exist, Developer, Developer’s contractor and 
subcontractors, agree to protect and defend the District in the same manner as if such cost 
provisions were not applicable. 

   d. Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all subcontractors shall have 
presented at the time of execution of the Agreement, the original policies of insurance and a 
certificate of insurance naming the District as the certificate holder and that such coverage is in 
force and complies with the terms and conditions outlined herein. 

   e. If an insurance policy contains a general policy aggregate of less than the 
minimum limits specified, then the policy coverage shall be written with limits applicable solely to 
this Agreement, as specified, and shall not be reduced by or impaired by any other claims arising 
against Developer.  These policy limits shall be set forth by separate endorsement to the policy. 

 4.4. Each such policy of General Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability 
Insurance shall contain endorsements providing the following: 

   a. The District, their board members, officers, agents, employees, consultants, and 
engineers, are hereby declared to be additional insureds under the terms of this policy, but only 
with respect to the operations of the Developer at or upon any of the premises of the District in 
connection with the Agreement with the District, or acts or omissions of the additional insureds in 
connection with, but limited to its general supervision or inspection of said operations and save for 
any claims arising from the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct the District. 

   b. No policy shall be canceled, limited, materially altered, or non-renewed by the 
insurer until thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of a written notice of such cancellation or 
reduction in coverage. 

16



5 
D25011 

   c. This insurance policy is primary insurance and no insurance held or owned by 
the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under this policy.   

5. BONDING REQUIREMENTS 

 5.1. Developer shall obtain a cost proposal for the approved water improvement plans 
from a pre-approved Contractor attached herein as Exhibit "C".  The cost proposal will be 
submitted to the District for review and approval, and shall be used as the basis for bonding 
requirements for the water system described in the plans provided to the District by the Developer 
and approved for construction by the District.  

 5.2. Performance Bond:  The cost proposal for the water system improvements for 
Ventana John Previti Ave (South Improvements), is (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT 
LATER DATE) no/100 dollars (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE). Developer 
shall and by this Agreement does guarantee the Developer's faithful performance of this 
Agreement and all of its terms and conditions by providing the following: Developer shall provide 
the District with a performance bond, from a surety institution licensed by the State of California 
and authorized to do and doing business in said State, valid and renewable until such 
improvements are accepted by the District.  The performance bond attached herein at Exhibit “D”, 
shall be in the amount of (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE) equal to 100 percent 
of the cost proposal. 

 5.3. Warranty Bond:  The pre-approved Contractor shall furnish a two-year warranty 
bond for all work completed in accordance with the approved water improvement plans attached 
herein as Exhibit "B". Before District's acceptance of the completed water facilities and 
appurtenances, such facilities and appurtenances shall be free from any and all liens and 
encumbrances and free from any and all defects in the materials or construction thereof. The two-
year warranty shall be a warranty bond beginning on the date of acceptance of the water facilities 
by the District and shall be in the amount of (DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE) 
equal to 100 percent of the Contractor’s cost proposal. 

6. MATERIALS 

 6.1. The water system facilities to be installed pursuant to this Agreement shall become 
an extension of the distribution system of the District.  All materials used must conform to District 
specifications for such materials pursuant to all applicable legal requirements.   

7. NOTICES 

 7.1. All notices herein required shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by 
registered mail, postage prepaid. 

 

 

 

 

17



6 
D25011 

7.2. Notices required shall be given to the District addressed as follows: 

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
Attn:  General Manager 
Post Office Box 920 
Rialto, CA  92377 
RE: Ventana John Previti Ave (South Improvements) 

7.3. Notices required shall be given to Developer addressed as follows: 

DEVELOPER NAME: 
ATTN TO:   
ADDRESS 
RE: Ventana John Previti Ave (South Improvements) 

7.4. Notices required shall be given to Surety addressed as follows: 
SURETY NAME: 
ATTN TO:   
ADDRESS 
RE: Ventana John Previti Ave (South Improvements) 

7.5. Provided that any party or Surety may change such address by notice in writing to the 
other party, and thereafter, notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address. 

7.6. The Developer or its contractor shall provide the District forty-eight (48) hours 
advance notice of request for inspection or testing. 

8. NOTICE TO PROCEED TO CONSTRUCT WATER SYSTEM
FACILITIES

8.1. Upon acceptance of the insurance and aforementioned bonds in the amounts provided 
herein and approval by the District and upon payment of all applicable charges, the Agreement 
shall be signed by Developer and the District.  The District shall return an original copy of the 
signed Agreement with a letter to Developer giving notice to proceed to construct the water 
system facilities. 

9. INSPECTION

9.1. It is understood that the sole purpose and intent of the District's inspection and testing
is to validate that the materials, workmanship, and construction of the water facilities are in 
compliance with the District-approved final plans, the District’s Rules and Regulations, the 
Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, the Standard Drawings, and all other applicable District 
requirements.  Developer acknowledges and represents that it assumes full and sole responsibility 
for the safety and management of the project. 

18



7 
D25011 

 9.2. Developer shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for 
inspection by the District to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in 
preparation.  Additionally, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, the District 
shall have the authority to enter the work site at any time for the purpose of identifying the 
existence of conditions, either actual or threatened, that may present a danger of hazard to any and 
all employees.  Developer agrees that the District, in its sole authority and discretion, may order 
the immediate abatement of any and all conditions that may present an actual or threatened danger 
or hazard to any and all employees at the work site.  Furthermore, Developer acknowledges the 
provisions of California Labor Code Section 6400 et seq., which requires that employers shall 
furnish employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for all employees 
working therein.  In the event the District identifies the existence of any condition that presents an 
actual or threatened danger or hazard to any or all employees at the work site, the District is 
hereby authorized to order an immediate abatement of that condition. 

 9.3. All work and materials shall be subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance by the 
District at Developer's expense.  In the event Developer arranges to have materials fabricated for 
the project, Developer may be required to arrange for the District to inspect that material during 
fabrication at Developer's expense. 

 9.4. All material fabrications shall be preapproved by the District and must conform to 
District standards and specifications. 

 9.5. The District's inspectors shall have full, unlimited access to perform continuous 
inspection and have the authority to stop work at any time, by written notice or verbal notice 
followed by written notice within three (3) working days, without any liability whatsoever to the 
District, if, in the inspectors' judgment, the work called for by this Agreement, or the District 
approved plans, or the specifications is not being installed or performed in a satisfactory and 
workmanlike manner according to District's standards and specifications and/or in the event the 
materials do not comply with the District's standards and specifications.  

 9.6. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor
 performs work with District inspection. If work is done without District inspection, the 
Contractor shall be responsible for exposing any portion of work as directed by the District at their 
sole expense. The District will not provide permanent water services until all required inspections 
are completed and any requirements set forth by the District have been satisfied. 

 9.7 Final acceptance of all material to be purchased or fabricated by Developer under this 
Agreement shall be made only with the prior approval of the District.  Approval by the District, 
however, shall not operate to relieve the material supplier or Developer of any guarantees, 
warranties, or the duty of compliance with any of the requirements of the approved plans and 
specifications or of this Agreement.  All construction pursuant to this Agreement shall be 
inspected pursuant for conformity with District requirements.  Developer shall pay actual costs for 
inspections. 

 

 

19



8 
D25011 

10. TESTING AND DISINFECTION 

 10.1. All water system facilities and components constructed pursuant to this Agreement 
shall adhere to all requirements for testing, disinfection, and flushing pursuant to District standards 
and Legal Requirements. 

11. RELOCATIONS, RECONSTRUCTIONS, AND DAMAGES 

 11.1. Developer accepts the responsibility for and the costs occasioned by any 
reconstruction, relocation, damages to, or changes of water services or facilities caused or 
contributed to directly or indirectly by any subsequent changes in the location of any of said 
facilities or water meters or water services. 

12. AS-CONSTRUCTED DOCUMENTATION 

 12.1. In order for the District to accept the facilities, Developer shall provide all required 
documentation as specified in the Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, including as-built 
drawings. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION 

 13.1. Developer hereby agrees to and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold the District 
and its board members , officers, agents, employees, and engineers free and harmless from any 
and all liability losses, damages, claims, liens, demands and cause of action of every kind and 
character including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interests, court costs, 
attorney's/legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by the District arising in favor of any party, 
including claims, liens, debts, demands for lost wages or compensation, personal injuries, 
including employees or the District, death or damages to property (including property of the 
District) and without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every character 
occurring or in any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of the 
obligations herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Developer save and except 
claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of the District or 
the District's agents and employees.  Developer shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide 
defense for and defend any such claims, demand, or suit at the sole expense of Developer even if 
the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent.  Developer agrees to, and shall 
defend the District and its members, directors, officers, agents, employees, and engineers from any 
suits or actions at law or in equity for damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, by reason 
of any of the aforesaid operations, provided as follows: 

   a. That the District does not and shall not waive any rights against Developer 
which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance 
by the District, or the deposit with District by Developer, or any of the insurance policies 
described in this Agreement. 

   b. That the aforesaid hold harmless agreement by Developer shall apply to all 
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by 
reason of any or the aforesaid operations referred to in this subsection, regardless of whether or 
not District has prepared, supplied water system installation, or regardless of whether or not such 

20



9 
D25011 

insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for 
damages. 

 This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party 
against Developer or the District or to enlarge in any way Developer's liability but is intended 
solely to provide for indemnification of the District from liability for damage or injuries to third 
persons or property arising from Developer's performance hereunder. 

 13.2. Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents, contractors or subcontractors are, 
or shall be, considered to be agents of the District in connection with the performance of 
Developer's obligations under this Agreement. 

14. REPAIR OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK 

 14.1. If, within a period of two years after final acceptance of the work performed under 
this Agreement, any structure or part of any structure furnished and/or installed or constructed, or 
caused to be installed or constructed by Developer, or any of the work done under this Agreement, 
fails to fulfill any of the requirement of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein, 
Developer shall, without delay and without any cost to District, repair or replace or reconstruct 
any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the work structure.  Should Developer 
fail to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or should the exigencies of the 
situation as determined by the District in the exercise of its sole discretion require repair, 
replacement or reconstruction before Developer can be notified, District may, at its option, make 
the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Developer shall pay to 
the District the actual cost of such repairs. 

15.  COSTS AND FEES 

 15.1. Developer shall be responsible for all fees and deposits as required by the District.  
All fees and deposits shall be paid in full before construction can take place as outlined in the 
billing letter (provided separately).  

 15.2. Any additional costs and fees shall be paid in full prior to conveyance and acceptance 
of the water system. 

16. CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM 

 16.1. Upon completion of the water system in accordance with the approved water plans 
and submission of the required documentation, the Developer shall convey the water system to the 
District. 

 16.2. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor furnish a 
warranty bond (One Hundred (100%) of Contractor’s cost proposal) for a period of two (2) years 
as stated in Sections 5.3 of this Agreement, as-built drawings with contractor redlines and 
AutoCAD files, materials list with quantities, water system cost breakouts, compaction test report 
signed and sealed by a California Registered Engineer, notice of completion filed with County 
Recorder’s office, fire flow tests of all hydrants, all required easements for water facilities and 
unconditional financial release from subcontractors and material providers.  Upon compliance 

21



10 
D25011 

with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District shall prepare the Bill of Sale 
accepting the water facilities and forward same to the address provided herein.  Title to the 
ownership of said facilities and appurtenances shall thereby be conveyed to the District.  The 
District shall thereafter operate and maintain said facilities so as to furnish water service to the 
development (Exhibit "A") in accordance with the District's ordinances, policies and Rules and 
Regulations. 

17. PERMANENT WATER SERVICE 

  17.1. In no event shall permanent water services be provided to Developer's installed 
system until all applicable charges and fees have been paid by Developer and all facilities have 
been conveyed, free of all encumbrances, to the District, including any easements which may be 
required.  Such conveyance shall occur in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

18. BREACH OR DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT 

 18.1. If Developer refuses or fails to obtain prosecution of the work, or any severable part 
thereof, with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time specified, or any 
extension thereof, or fails to obtain completion of said work within such time, or if Developer 
should be adjudged as bankrupt, or Developer should make a general assignment for the benefit of 
Developer's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Developer's insolvency, 
or if Developer, or any of Developer's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees, should 
violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the District’s General Manager or the General 
Manager’s designee may serve written notice upon Developer and Developer's surety of breach of 
this Agreement, or of any portion therefore, and default of Developer. 

 18.2. In the event of any such notice, Developer's surety shall have the duty to take over 
and complete the work and the improvement herein specified; provided, however, that if the 
surety, within five (5) days after the serving upon of such notice of breach, does not give the 
District written notice of its intention to take over the performance of the contract, and does not 
commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the District of such election, 
District may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or by any other 
method District may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Developer, and 
Developer's surety shall be liable to the District for any excess cost or damages occasioned District 
thereby; and, in such event, District, without liability for so doing, may take possession of, and 
utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, plant and other property belonging to 
Developer as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore. 

19. SUCCESSORS BOUND 

 19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties 
and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE] 

22



11 
D25011 

20. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS 

 20.1. The District's failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement or the waiver 
thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of 
any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement. 

  

 WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

 

 By:           Date:    
  John Thiel, General Manager 
 
 

 DEVELOPER:  

 HDO 4, LLC  
 a New Mexico limited liability company 

 
 
  
 By:           Date:    
  Richard Munkvold 
  Authorized Agent 

23



Exhibit A 

24



Ex
hi

bi
t A

Ve
nt

an
a 

(S
ou

th
)

15
 

FR
W

Y
21

0
FR

W
Y

10
FR

W
Y

21
5

FR
W

Y

Lytle Creek Rd

D
un

ca
n 

Ca
ny

on
 R

d

Citrus Ave

PR
O

JE
CT

 
AR

EA

25



Exhibit B

26



27



28



29



30



31



Exhibit C

32



Exhibit D

33



1 

          BOND NO. ________________ 

 

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND 

 
To WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT for Water System Installation in Accordance with 

Water Improvement Plans for Ventana John Previti Avenue (South Improvements) DATE OF 

APPROVED PLANS. This premium charged on this bond is $________ being at the rate of 

$_____ per thousand of the contract price. 

 KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 

 THAT, WHEREAS, the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT has awarded to: 

HDO 4, LLC 
2151 Convention Center Way, Suite 114 

Ontario, CA 91764 
 

as the "Principal", an agreement for the work described as follows: 

  Water System Installation in Accordance with Approved Water Improvement 

Plans for Ventana John Previti Avenue (South Improvements), dated DATE OF 

APPROVED PLANS.  

 WHEREAS, the said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a 

bond for the faithful performance of labor and materials of said contract: 

 NOW, THEREFORE, WE the undersigned Developer, as Principal, and 

___________________________________________ (Name of Surety) 

_______________________(Address of Surety) duly authorized to transact business under the 

laws of the State of California, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the WEST VALLEY 

WATER DISTRICT in the sum (TEXT PERFORMANCE BOND AMOUNT) no/100 dollars 

(NUMERIC PERFORMANCE BOND AMOUNT), lawful money of the United States, for the 

payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, 

administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

34



2 

 THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the above bounded 

Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things 

stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform all the undertakings, terms, 

covenants, conditions and agreements in the said agreement and any alteration thereof made as 

therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed, at the time and in the manner 

therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall 

indemnify and save harmless the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and 

as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and 

remain in full force and effect.  In case suit is brought on this bond, Surety further agrees to pay 

all court costs and reasonable attorney's fees as shall be fixed by the court. 

 And the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, 

extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be 

performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its 

obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, 

alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this ______ day of 

______________, 2025. 

ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED 

 

PRINCIPAL 

 

HDO 4, LLC 

a New Mexico Limited Liability Company 

 
 
By:_____________________________                                         
 Richard Munkvold 
 
 Authorized Agent 

35



3 

 

 

(NOTARIZATION AND SEAL) 

 

 

SURETY 

 

 

                                

 

 

(NOTARIZATION AND SEAL) 

 

 

36





STAFF REPORT

DATE:   July 17, 2025

TO:         Board of Directors

FROM:  Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT:   Award of Contract for Lord Ranch Facilities Project

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply

A. Increase System Capacity for Anticipated Growth

Strategic Goal 5 – Apply Sound Planning, Innovation, and Best Practices

A. Increase Operational Efficiency, Resiliency, and Reliability

MEETING HISTORY:

06/25/2025 - Special Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting

BACKGROUND:

The Lord Ranch Site (Site) is located on the east side of Pepper Avenue, between Baseline Road and the 210
Freeway, in the City of Rialto. This Site is currently occupied by Pump Station 4-1, Reservoir 3-2, and Groundwater
Wells 7, 8A, and 36. The West Valley Water District (District) proposes to construct several infrastructure
improvements at the Site to increase operational capacity through the Base Line Feeder (BLF) transmission
pipeline. The BLF delivers purchase groundwater from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District, which is
then boosted into the District’s norther service area.

The proposed project includes the construction and operation of a 1-million-gallon aeration tank (R3-5), and a new
booster pump station (PS4-3), which will be housed within a concrete masonry building. Pipelines will be installed
to connect the new facilities to the existing infrastructure on-site. Site grading and drainage improvements (Site
Improvements) will also be completed to support the new construction and improve overall site functionality.

Additional improvements include the installation of new pumps and motors, a ventilation system, an emergency
standby generator with a fuel tank and day tank, site and building electrical including a switchboard and motor
control center. The project will also incorporate a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) System and
Instrumentation, as well as provisions for equipment testing, system start-up, and the development of an operations
and maintenance manual. Further work includes the installation of perimeter wrought iron fencing, site grading,
paving, and modifications to the existing drainage system piping that serves the existing reservoir. Collectively,
these improvements will enhance the District’s ability to reliably deliver water to its northern service area and
increase system resilience.

37



Staff contracted with a design consultant to prepare a Request for Bids for the Lord Ranch Facilities Project, which
was advertised on PlanetBids to General Contractors.

DISCUSSION:

As part of the bidding process, a mandatory pre-bid job walk was conducted to provide prospective contractors with
an overview of the project scope and site conditions. The job walk was well-attended, with fifteen contractors and
subcontractors participating. Following the job-walk, the District received six (6) formal bids for the project. A
 summary of the bids received is presented in the table below for reference.

 

Bidder Amount*

Caliagua Inc. $13,129,400.00

Pyramid Buildings & Engineering, Inc. $13,247,785.00

Innovative Construction Solutions $13,250,000.00

Canyon Springs Enterprises $13,480,300.00

Pacific Hydrotech Corporation $14,728,700.00

Steve P. Rados, Inc. $15,526,000.00

 * The Engineers Estimate for the project was estimated at $10,114,000.

After the receipt of bids staff identified a perimeter fencing improvement to increase site security by installing a
welded wire mesh fencing panel as opposed to the traditional tubular wrought iron panels. Caliagua provided a cost
for the upgraded fencing that would increase the bid amount by $238,260.00.

A copy of the received bid from Caliagua is attached as Exhibit A to this staff report. 

 FISCAL IMPACT:

This project is included in the five-year funding schedule for the Fiscal Year 2025/26 Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) Budget. Sufficient funds have been allocated within the project budget to cover the anticipated costs.

REQUESTED ACTION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve a Construction Contract with Caliagua Inc. in the amount of $13,367,660.00 for the Lord Ranch
Facilities Project (W15003, 15004, and W15006); and

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 

38



Attachments

Exhibit A - Bid Forms.pdf

39

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d727884a0ff006ebc7085%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Bid%20Forms.pdf?alt=media&token=d2c5a151-b225-4ba6-b25a-4a9a619034c9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d727884a0ff006ebc7085%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Bid%20Forms.pdf?alt=media&token=d2c5a151-b225-4ba6-b25a-4a9a619034c9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d727884a0ff006ebc7085%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20Bid%20Forms.pdf?alt=media&token=d2c5a151-b225-4ba6-b25a-4a9a619034c9


40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



STAFF REPORT

DATE:  July 17, 2025

TO:   Board of Directors

FROM:  Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT:   Change Order No. 1 with Merlin Johnson Construction Inc. for the Zone 7 - 18-Inch Transmission Main
Crossing Ontario I-15 Freeway Project

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply

A. Increase System Capacity for Anticipated Growth

Strategic Goal 5 – Apply Sound Planning, Innovation, and Best Practices

A. Increase Operational Efficiency, Resiliency, and Reliability

MEETING HISTORY:

06/25/2025 - Special Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting 

BACKGROUND:

On March 20, 2025, West Valley Water District (“District”) entered into an Agreement with Merlin Johnson
Construction, Inc. (“Contractor”) for the construction of the 18-inch Transmission Main Crossing Ontario I-15
Freeway Project (“Project”). The Project was designed to install a new 18-inch (18”) water pipeline approximately
580 linear feet, connecting to an existing 18” transmission main at Lytle Creek Road, bore under the Ontario I-15
freeway with a 36” steel casing within Caltrans right-of-way, and terminate at Citrus Avenue in anticipation of the
future development within the area.

DISCUSSION:

On May 14, 2025, during a utility potholing in the areas adjacent to the freeway, the Contractor encountered
boulders in the size of 30” in diameter.  The designed steel casing was intended to bore through rocks that are
about 12” in diameter.  Given the large-size boulders observed at the project site, the following changes were
recommended by the Contractor:

Increasing the steel casing size from 36” to 48” in diameter.
Hand-mining, in lieu of boring, underneath across the freeway to install the steel casing.

87



Based on the past project experience, boring equipment would likely be damaged and the boring path would be
deflected or altered when encountering large-size (30” or larger) boulders.  Hand-mining method is expected to
require an additional 74 calendar days to complete the crossing of the freeway but is considered the most efficient
and cost-effective approach with the given field condition.

Replacing spacers with redwood skids to support the 18” water pipeline at the center of the steel casing.  This
material change will reduce the project cost by $58,000.

After further review and discussion with the design consultant and a third-party boring-specialized contractor, Staff
determined that the recommended method is the most cost-effective approach in completing the project
successfully.

The expected construction duration will be extended by 74 calendar days for a total of 254 calendar days.

FISCAL IMPACT:

This Project was included in the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Capital Improvement Budget under Project No. W21007
Zone 7 – 18” Transmission Main Crossing Ontario I-15 Freeway Project.  Additional funds will be allocated in the
Fiscal Year 2025/2026 Capital Improvement Budget for project completion.

This change order will increase the contract amount by $583,015, for a total of $1,912,490.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve Change Order No. 1 in the amount of $583,015 with Merlin Johnson Construction, Inc. for the
construction of the 18-inch Transmission Main Crossing Ontario I-15 Freeway Project and;

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 

Attachments

Exhibit A - MJC Change Order 1.pdf

88

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d723d84a0ff006ebc6f92%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20MJC%20Change%20Order%201.pdf?alt=media&token=1441e8b7-df10-447c-97ab-e24b0333f697
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d723d84a0ff006ebc6f92%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20MJC%20Change%20Order%201.pdf?alt=media&token=1441e8b7-df10-447c-97ab-e24b0333f697
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d723d84a0ff006ebc6f92%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20MJC%20Change%20Order%201.pdf?alt=media&token=1441e8b7-df10-447c-97ab-e24b0333f697


Exhibit A 

 

1 

SECTION 2.11 

 of 

 PROCEDURAL DOCUMENTS 

  

CHANGE ORDER 

 
 
OWNER:  West Valley Water District                                

 
CONTRACTOR:  Merlin Johnson Construction, Inc. 

 
P.O. Box 777 
Mentone, CA 92359 
 

PROJECT:  18-Inch Transmission Main Crossing 
Ontario I-15 Freeway Project 
 

Change Order No. 1                 
 
Date:   July 17, 2025                           
 

 Agreement Date:   March 20, 2025 
 
Sheet 1 of 3                        
 

  
I. The following changes are hereby made to the Contract Documents:  

 
 

II. CONTRACT TIME 

 

Seventy-four (74) additional calendar days to be added to the contract for this change order.     
 

III. JUSTIFICATION: 

 
Item No. 1: 36” diameter steel casing will only work if the underground rocks are in the size of 
12” diameter or less.  Based on the observation during utility potholing, the boulders in the area 
can be 30” or larger which requires hand-mining through a 48” diameter casing.

ITEM 

NO. 
EXTRA WORK DESCRIPTION ADD DEDUCT 

ADDITIONAL 

CALENDAR 

DAYS 

1 
Increasing steel casing size from 36” to 48” 
in diameter. 

$94,500   

2 
Hand-mining across the I-15 freeway, in lieu 
of boring. 

$546,515  74 

3 
Using redwood skids, in lieu of spacers, to 
support the 18” water pipeline at the center 
of steel casing  

 ($58,000)  

     

 TOTALS $641,015 ($58,000) 74 Days 

TOTAL AMOUNT FOR CHANGE ORDER NO. 1  $583,015 

89



 

 

2 

 
Item No. 2: Given the large size of the boulders in the area, the auger would likely be damaged 
during boring and the boring path may be deflected or altered when encountering large boulders.  
Hand-mining method would be the most efficient and cost-effective approach in the given field 
condition.  Hand-mining would require an additional 74 calendar days to complete the project. 
 
Item No. 3: Spacers can be replaced with redwood skids to support the 18” water pipeline in the 
center of the steel casing during installation.  This material change will result in a credit of 
$58,000. 
 
 

IV. CHANGE TO CONTRACT PRICE 

 

Original Contract Price        $1,329,475.00 
 

Current Contract Price Adjusted by Previous Change Order(s)   $   
 

Contract Price due to this Change Order shall be (increased)   $583,015.00  
 
New Contract Price including this Change Order           $1,912,490.00 
 

V. CHANGE TO CONTRACT TIME 

 
Contract Time will be (increased)           74   
               (Calendar Days) 
 
Original Date for Completion of all Work       1/16/2026   
           (Date) 
 
New Date for Completion of all Work       3/31/2026   
           (Date) 
 
REQUIRED APPROVALS: 

 
To be effective, this Change Order must be approved by the Owner, or as may otherwise be 
required by the Supplemental General Conditions.   
 
 
__________________________  
Requested By (Contractor) 

 
____________________________ 
(Print Name) 

 
______________ 
Date 

 
 
________________________________ 
Recommended By  
(Project Manager) 

 
  Leo Chan___________________                                      
(Print Name) 

 
______________ 
Date 

 
________________________________ 
Recommended By  
(Director of Engineering) 

 
_Rocky Welborn______________ 
(Print Name) 

 
_______________ 
Date 

90



 

 

3 

 
________________________________ 
Recommended By  
(General Manager) 

 
_ John Thiel___________________ 
(Print Name) 

 
_______________ 
Date 

 
________________________________ 
Accepted By (Owner) 
 

 
_____________________________ 
(Print Name) 

 
_______________ 
Date 

 
 

91





STAFF REPORT

DATE:   July 17, 2025

TO:         Board of Directors

FROM:  Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT:   Award of Contract for the Bloomington Alleyway Main Replacement Project – Phase 3C

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply
A. Increase System Capacity for Anticipated Growth

Strategic Goal 5 – Apply Sound Planning, Innovation, and Best Practices
A. Increase Operational Efficiency, Resiliency, and Reliability

 MEETING HISTORY:

06/25/2025 - Special Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting 

BACKGROUND:

Currently, a portion of the water distribution system in Bloomington - including mains, service lines, and valves, are
located within the rear alleyways behind residential properties. Over the years, the construction of fences and
buildings in the alleyway has restricted WVWD’s ability to access meters, locate shut-off valves, and perform both
routine and emergency maintenance activities.

To resolve these access limitations and improve overall system reliability, WVWD proposes the construction of
approximately 4,400 linear feet of 8-inch and 4,000 linear feet of 24-inch cement-lined, mortar-coated, fully welded
steel pipeline within the public right-of-way. The pipeline installation will occur along 8th Street, between Locust and
Cedar Avenue, and along Maple Avenue, between 7th and 8th Street. The project also includes the relocation of
106 service laterals from the rear alleyways to the front of the associated properties, the installation of 11 new fire
hydrants, and the connections of the new pipelines to existing waterlines within the paved right-of-way.

The District contracted with a design consultant to prepare the construction bid documents for Phase 3C. The
Request for Bids was subsequently advertised through PlanetBids to contractors on the District’s preapproved
pipeline contractors list.

The West Valley Water District (WVWD), in partnership with San Bernardino County 5th District Supervisor Joe
Baca Junior, has secured a $1.5 million investment to support the Bloomington Alleyway Water Main Replacement
Project – Phase 3C. This critical infrastructure project aims to enhance fire flow, improve emergency response
capabilities, and provide a more dependable and reliable water supply for residents of Bloomington.

DISCUSSION:
92



As part of the bidding process, a mandatory pre-bid job walk was conducted to provide prospective contractors with
an overview of the project scope and site conditions. The job walk was well-attended, with six (6) contractors
participating. Following the job-walk, the District received four (4) formal bids for the project. A summary of the bids
received is presented in the table below for reference.

Bidder Amount*

TK Construction $4,642,034.71

Norstar Plumbing & Engineering Inc. $5,176,220.86

C.P. Construction Co., Inc. $6,299,085.00

Merlin Johnson Contractors, Inc. $6,965,592.00

* The Engineers Estimate for the project was estimated at $5,134,724.

As part of the bid schedule, staff identified an alternative bid item to grind and overlay the asphalt paving cap per
the County of San Bernardino Department of Public Works requirements that the County may require following the
completion of the work. TK Construction provided a cost for the alternative bid item that would increase the bid
amount by $217,397.61 if the County inspectors require the additional paving work following the project
construction activities.

A copy of the received bid from TK Construction is included with the staff report as Exhibit A.

Staff also requested the design engineer, Albert A. Webb Associates (Webb), provide a proposal to perform
engineering services during construction. These services will include traditional project management
responsibilities of the Engineer of Record such as responding to requests for information from the Contractor and
providing design intent responses.  Webb has included these services in their proposal attached as Exhibit B.

The expected construction duration for the proposal is 240 working days.

FISCAL IMPACT:
 
This project is included in the five-year funding schedule for the Fiscal Year 2025/26 Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) Budget. Sufficient funds have been allocated within the project budget to cover the anticipated costs. The
recommended activities described in this staff report includes a construction contract award of $4,859,432.32 plus
the engineering services during construction contract of $145,600.00, which are both within the CIP budget.   
 
REQUESTED ACTION:

Staff recommends to the Board of Directors to:

1. Approve a Construction Contract with TK Construction in the amount of $4,859,432.32 for the Bloomington
Alleyway Water Main Replacement Project – Phase 3C (W25037); and

2. Approve a New Task Order with Albert A. Webb Associates in the amount of $145,600.00 for Engineering
Services during construction for the project; and

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

 
93



Attachments

Exhibit A - TK Construction Bid.pdf
Exhibit B - New Task Order with Webb.pdf

94

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d720984a0ff006ebc6e98%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20TK%20Construction%20Bid.pdf?alt=media&token=b327b8c4-c9d7-4858-a025-c8073b6810be
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d720984a0ff006ebc6e98%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20TK%20Construction%20Bid.pdf?alt=media&token=b327b8c4-c9d7-4858-a025-c8073b6810be
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d720984a0ff006ebc6e98%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20TK%20Construction%20Bid.pdf?alt=media&token=b327b8c4-c9d7-4858-a025-c8073b6810be
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d720984a0ff006ebc6e98%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20New%20Task%20Order%20with%20Webb.pdf?alt=media&token=5c0c2bdb-0e2e-4e9c-9d44-da04b76ec30e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d720984a0ff006ebc6e98%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20New%20Task%20Order%20with%20Webb.pdf?alt=media&token=5c0c2bdb-0e2e-4e9c-9d44-da04b76ec30e
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F685d720984a0ff006ebc6e98%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20New%20Task%20Order%20with%20Webb.pdf?alt=media&token=5c0c2bdb-0e2e-4e9c-9d44-da04b76ec30e


 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108

bryan
Text Box
All American Asphalt



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



EXHIBIT  

130



1 
                                                                                                                               7/31/23 Master Copy 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 

Construction Management and Inspection Services for the W25037 Bloomington 
Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C 

 

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this ______ day of ___________, 2025 by 
and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California 
(“District”) and Albert A. Webb Associates (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

A. On or about February 20, 2025 District and Consultant executed that certain 
Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services provided by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task 
Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement and this Task Order, District shall pay 
to Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual 
expenses, may not exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional 
compensation is approved in writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order.  As such, the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

131



2 
                                                                                                                               7/31/23 Master Copy 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
DISTRICT: 
 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 
By _______________________________________    

Gregory Young, President 

 

By _______________________________________    
John Thiel, General Manager 

 
 
 
By_______________________________________ 
 Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES 
 
 
By       
 

Name       
 
Its       

132



3 
                                                                                                                               7/31/23 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

The purpose of the scope of services is to outline the tasks that are necessary to complete 
Construction Management and Inspection Services for the W25037 Bloomington Area 
Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C for West Valley Water District (District) per the 
attached proposal dated April 21, 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

133



P_2025-0140 

 

3788 McCray Street, Riverside, CA 92506 | P:951.686.1070 | F:951.788.1256 | www.webbassociates.com 

 

 
 

Rosa Gutierrez, P.E.  

Senior Engineer 

West Valley Water District (WVWD) 

855 W. Base Line Rd. | Rialto, CA 92377 

 

RE: Proposal for Construction Management and Inspection Services for the W25037 Bloomington 

Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C 

 

Dear Rosa, 

 

Webb Associates is pleased to provide you with this proposal for Construction Management and 

Inspection services for the subject project referenced above. Enclosed you will find our Project 

Understanding (Section 1), Scope of Work (Section 2), and Compensation for Services (Section 3) for 

your review and consideration. 

 

If you find this proposal acceptable, please notify our office so a contract agreement can be prepared.  

We appreciate this opportunity to be of service and look forward to hearing from you.  If you have any 

questions regarding this proposal, please contact us at 951-830-5746. 

 

Sincerely, 

      

ALBERT A. WEBB ASSOCIATES 

 

 

 

Reed Chilton, P.E 

Director of Construction Management and Inspection 

 
 
 

April 21, 2025 

134



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
 

1.1 PROJECT DETAILS 

- Construction Duration: 240 Working Days  

- Location: 8th street East of Locust Avenue and west of Cedar Avenue and Maple street 

North of 8th Street and South of 9th Street 

- Project Description: The project involves the construction of a new water main along 

with all necessary appurtenances and services to replace the existing pipeline. Scope of 

work includes the procurement and installation of Cement Mortar Lined and Coated 

(CML/C) steel pipeline with appurtenances, service connections, and fire hydrants. 

Additionally, the project includes roadway restoration, encompassing pavement repair, 

signing and striping, and traffic signal loop replacement. 

- Project Plans: Zone 2 Waterline and Service Relocation Phase 3C 

- Level of Involvement: Based on discussions and coordination with the District, 

Construction Management and Inspection services are being requested on a limited basis. 

It is assumed that the District will be providing primary inspection and construction 

management services for the project. The scope and level of involvement outlined in this 

proposal are less than what is typically provided. Therefore, it is understood that the 

services will be limited to the assumptions stated herein, and WEBB will not be providing 

a full-service scope. 

 

1.2 PROJECT SCHEDULE 

 

Duration Description Scope Required 

8 Weeks Pre-Construction meeting, 

Contracts, Permits, Potholing 

Construction Management 

16 Weeks Material Procurement Construction Management (minimal) 

20 Weeks Mobilization, Pipe Installation, 

Appurtenances, Testing, 

Pavement, and Street Restoration. 

Construction Management  

Part-Time Observation (up to 100 hours) 

Materials Testing (by others) 

Construction Survey 

4 Weeks Closeout Process, Punchlist, and 

As-builts 

Construction Management 

 

135



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

1.3 KEY PROJECT ISSUES: 

1. Safety 
a. The project is located in an existing neighborhood 

i. WEBB will ensure effective traffic control is in place following “CA MUTCD 
2014 Edition, Rev 8”. 

ii. The WEBB Team will be active in encouraging safe practices. WEBB will 
reinforce the Contractor’s requirement to provide adequate safety 
measures at each project meeting with the Contractor. 

iii. WEBB will ensure that proper notices are given to affected residents as 
needed based on the Contractor’s schedule 

b. Gas lines and energized utilities will be exposed during construction 
i. Manage work near active utilities to minimize risk and ensure worker and 

public safety. 
 

2. Unforeseen Conditions 
a. Existing utilities in the work zone 

i. The plans were designed based on utility research conducted in 2016. 
WEBB anticipates that the contractor may encounter unidentified utilities 
during potholing.  

ii. Our team will proactively identify utility owners and initiate coordination 
between the owning agency and the design team to address any conflicts 
efficiently. 

iii. WEBB will ensure that the Contractor will perform proactive potholing at 
the start of the project to identify and mitigate potential underground utility 
conflicts. 

iv. WEBB will carefully review the Contractor’s schedule and compare it to 
material lead times to maintain project timelines. 

v. WEBB will thoroughly evaluate the Contractor’s pothole report before 
construction begins, providing recommendations as needed. 

vi. Due to the waterline being constructed with CML/C pipe, WEBB will verify 
that lay sheets align with project plans and pothole findings to prevent 
misalignment issues. 

vii. WEBB will require the Contractor to order pipe materials only after the 
pothole report and lay sheets are finalized, reducing the risk of incorrect 
material procurement. 

b. Site Conditions 
i. WEBB will request preconstruction video documentation to identify any pre-

existing site conditions or damage before work begins. 
ii. WEBB will ensure all trenching and street restoration comply with 

applicable standards, maintaining roadway integrity and minimizing post-
construction issues. 

 
3. Compliance 

a. The District is seeking qualified inspection  
i. WEBB has experience with all standards that are being used (Standard 

Specifications for Public Works Construction 2021 Edition and West Valley 
Water District’s Standards and specifications for Domestic Water Facilities) 

 
 

136



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

b. Pipe Chlorination and Testing 
i. WEBB will proactively review the Contractor’s chlorination and flushing 

plan to ensure compliance with industry standards and project 
specifications. 

ii. WEBB will verify proper discharge locations and confirm that all 
dechlorination measures are in place to prevent environmental impact. 

iii. Coordination with the Contractor will be prioritized to ensure efficient 
scheduling and execution, minimizing project delays. 
 

1.4 PROPOSED STAFF 

WEBB has extensive experience in providing inspection and construction management services 

for complex water infrastructure projects, including the installation of new water mains and 

associated improvements. Our team is well-versed in overseeing the procurement and installation 

of Cement Mortar Lined and Coated (CML/C) steel pipelines, ensuring compliance with industry 

standards and project specifications. 

 

WEBB’s construction management team works closely with WEBB’s water resources team to 

ensure seamless coordination throughout the project. This collaboration allows us to address 

design considerations, optimize solutions, and proactively mitigate potential challenges. 

With a strong focus on quality control, scheduling, and safety, WEBB effectively manages the 

installation of appurtenances, service connections, and fire hydrants. Our expertise extends 

beyond pipeline construction to include roadway restoration, where we oversee pavement repairs, 

signing and striping, and traffic signal loop replacements. By leveraging proactive coordination, 

thorough inspections, and clear communication, WEBB ensures successful project execution 

while minimizing disruptions to the surrounding community. 

Construction Services Manager 

Keith Barnett is a seasoned Construction Services Manager and Inspector at WEBB, with over 

20 years of experience in construction management. Keith also has a background as a soils 

technician, which will allow him to provide valuable insight and ensure that the geotechnical firm 

selected has the best interests of the District in mind. His expertise spans a wide range of projects, 

particularly in waterline replacement, underground utilities, and street improvements. 

 

Key Experience Highlights: 

 

Stage Ranch Pipeline Replacement, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District 

Keith managed the replacement of 2,600-LF of existing water main, including 330-LF of 8-inch 

DIP and 2,270-LF of 8-inch PVC C900 pipe. The project involved maintaining service to 

agricultural areas, despite challenges such as mountainous terrain, overhead powerlines, limited 

work space, and a required road detour. The successful management of these challenges 

ensured minimal disruption while improving water quality and pressure. 

 

137



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

 

Granite Hill Pipeline Phase I and II, Jurupa Community Services District 

Keith oversaw the construction of approximately 11,655-LF of 42-inch CML/CMC waterline, 

including connections, appurtenances, and associated paving and trenching. Extensive potholing 

was required due to the pre-manufactured nature of the waterline, and careful coordination with 

local schools, businesses, and residents was necessary for street and water shutdowns. 

 

Zone 1467 Phase V Water Main, Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District, City of Wildomar 

This project involved the installation of 4,000-LF of 8-inch PVC waterline, new fire hydrants, 

valves, pressure-reducing valves, check valve assemblies, and water services. Keith effectively 

coordinated with public agencies to minimize the impact on the public, while ensuring smooth 

project execution. 

 

Keith's extensive experience in managing waterline replacement, underground utilities, and street 

restoration projects, combined with his strong project management and client relationship skills, 

makes him a key asset to WEBB’s Construction Management and Inspection team. 

1.4.1 Construction Manager  

Andrew Vollrath will provide day-to-day construction management services and serve as the 

prime point of contact. The CM will have direct responsibility for the Inspector and project team. 

He will be responsible for coordination with the District, Contractor, Inspector, materials testing, 

RFI’s, submittals, scheduling, and change order reviews.  

 

Andrew has extensive experience in managing underground utility projects, street improvements, 

and related infrastructure work. His notable projects include: 

– Jackson Street Improvements Project Phase 1 – This project involved road widening, 

agency coordination, CVWD and IWA lateral improvements, and street improvements in 

the City of Indio, with a focus on underground utilities and infrastructure upgrades. 

– PLC North Offsite Improvements – Andrew oversaw underground utility improvements, 

street improvements, and traffic signal installation on Redlands Avenue and Ellis Avenue 

in the City of Perris. This included coordination with EMWD to ensure the successful 

integration of utilities and traffic systems. 

 

Andrew’s expertise spans multiple project phases, ensuring efficient execution and successful 

delivery. 

1.4.2 Inspection 

The WEBB Inspector (Jeff Paxson) will communicate with the Construction Management Team 

and help coordinate the work in the field. The WEBB Inspector will prepare daily observation 

reports which will be shared with the District.   

 

 

 

138



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

 

Jeff Paxson – Professional Summary 

Jeff Paxson has over 35 years of experience in the water and wastewater industry, including 10 

years with the District of La Verne Water Department and 25 years as a Lead Distribution Operator 

for the City of Chino. His expertise includes water distribution operations, quality control, safety 

management, and regulatory compliance. 

 

Jeff has supervised and assisted in water main, service, fire hydrant, and backflow system 

installations and repairs, as well as well site and pump maintenance, contract inspections, and 

asphalt/concrete restoration. He has also trained staff, reviewed Contractor plans, conducted pre-

construction meetings, and inspected water and sewer projects, hydrostatic testing, and traffic 

control compliance. 

 

Project Experience 

Lewis Development – Reclaimed Water Transmission Line Project, Chino 

Jeff inspected 5.4 miles of PVC pipeline with air vacs, blow-offs, and fire hydrants, ensuring 

compliance with hydrostatic testing, trench excavation, and system commissioning. He also 

coordinated road closures and traffic detours, verifying adherence to traffic control and project 

specifications. 

 

His extensive field inspection, safety, and project management experience makes him a valuable 

asset to any water infrastructure project. 

 

If Jeff Paxon requires a temporary leave or if the project demands additional inspection coverage, 

such as for night work or extensive construction activities, WEBB has designated Ronnie 

Hernandez and Clay Jarvinen as alternate Inspectors. Resumes are available upon request. 

 

For budget purposes, WEBB inspection hours include up to 570 hours (4-hour daily minimum). 

We have assumed 95 part time inspection days per an email from the District on 3/6/2025. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

139



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

WEBB Associates (WEBB) will perform the following Scope of Construction Services for the 

Project.  WEBB’s scope and fee is based upon the anticipated project schedule and the direction 

provided by the District during the proposal process.  In the event the Contractor exceeds the 

schedule, we will review the status of the work to determine the need for an increase in the budget 

amount. The assumptions included in the scope were used to determine the cost of each service. 

We are open to discuss the assumptions and will update the associated manhours, if necessary.  

 

2.1 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

• Accept and review all submittals and RFIs (up to 25 and 10). 

• Review schedule of shop drawing submissions (up to 2 submissions) 

• Interpret plans and specifications on behalf of the District and transmit the District’s 
clarifications and interpretations of the contract documents. 

• Prepare and distribute working day statements weekly to the District and Contractor. (up 
to 48 

• Coordinate with utilities companies 

• Act as WVWD’s liaison with the Contractor, ensuring clarity on Contract Documents, 
assisting with necessary details for project execution, and advising on the risks of acting 
on unauthorized instructions. 

• Field Visits for review of work, Rejection of defective work, inspections and tests. (up to 5 
site visits) 

• Review requests for change orders and draft CCOs as necessary. (up to 10 COR) 

• Prepare independent cost estimates for additional work as necessary. (up to 10) 

• Prepare time impact analysis for additional days as necessary. (up to 10) 

• Project Management and Contract Administration. 

• Review and verify the Contractor’s as-builts. (up to 2 submissions) 

• Review guarantees, certificates, maintenance and operation manuals. 
 

2.2 INSPECTION 

• Provide limited oversight of the project on an as-needed basis determined by the District.  

• Review the project specifications, special provisions, and bid documents. 

• Provide Construction Inspection to monitor materials and methods for compliance with 
plans, specifications, and contract documents.  Address and document nonconforming 
items as they are identified. 

• Maintain daily reports on days on-site regarding construction activity, including progress, 
weather conditions, significant events which may affect the progress of the work and 
photographs. 

• Review Contractor performance throughout the day and discuss discrepancies with the 
Contractor as they occur. 

• Review Soil compaction and materials testing. 

• Maintain field files during construction, including a cumulative record of quantities 
constructed, daily reports, working day reports, change order documentation and digital 
images. 

140



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

• If inspection is scheduled, but not needed, a 4-hour minimum will be charged to the 
Contractor. Also, overtime inspection charges will be charged to the Contractor.   

• Review and record final quantities. 

• Provide recommendation for acceptance upon completion. 
 

2.3 CONSTRUCTION STAKING 

Construction staking services will be provided for the contractor’s use in installing the pipeline and 

appurtenances in accordance with the plans.  Staking services include the following: 

• Provide coordination of acquiring approved project construction plans for consultants use and 

scheduling of field surveyors with the client/contractor.  

• Provide office support to the field surveyors consisting of task setup, calculating and plotting, 

and preparation of “cut” sheets for those items to be staked as requested by the 

client/contractor.  

• Establish and provide horizontal and vertical survey control points throughout the progress of 

the project including the setting of project Benchmarks.   

• Provide waterline staking, consisting of stakes being set at 50-foot intervals offset from and 

graded to the invert elevations as noted on the plans, including (BC’s) beginning and (EC’s) 

end of curves, PIs, VPIs, tees, connections for services and appurtenances. 

• Provide waterline appurtenance staking, consisting of two stakes for each hot tap, fire hydrant, 

new water meter, blow-off, and air vac. First stake for actual location, second stake for offset 

and grade. 

• Provide review and cataloging of all field compiled data. Distribute digital “cut” sheets to 

client/contractor for their use.  

 

Deliverables: 

• One set of pipeline construction stakes, offset per contractor’s request. 

• Electronic PDF of “cut” sheets for contractor’s use in installing the pipeline (hard copies 

available upon request). 

 

Total budget outlined within this scope of work is based on a total of 10 mobilizations.  It 

is acknowledged that the client or client representative will give Albert A. WEBB 

Associates a minimum of 48-hour advance notice, together with a minimum of 4 (four) 

hours of construction staking work per day for all construction staking request.  Re-stake 

request will be addressed by a Time and Materials (T&M) ticket based on a 4 (four) hour 

minimum, unless previously agreed to in writing. 

 

2.4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Services which are not specifically identified herein as services to be performed by WEBB 

Associates are considered Additional Services for the purposes of this Proposal.  The District may 

request that WEBB Associates perform services which are Additional Services.  WEBB 

141



West Valley Water District   

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

Associates will perform such additional services upon execution of an amendment to this 

Agreement setting forth the scope, schedule, and fee for such additional services. 

 

2.5 EXCLUSIONS 

Any work relating to the following is specifically excluded for the Construction Services proposed 

herein and, if required, must be contracted for under a separate contract or as an addendum to 

this contract: 

• Full-time inspection 

• Full-service Construction Management 

• Welding Inspection 

• Utility Potholing 

• Soil and Material Testing 

• Prepare Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans (SWPPP) 

• Permit and Payments 

• Traffic Control Plans (by Contractor) 

• Utility Relocation Plans 

• Property Acquisition 

• Any other work task not specifically in the Scope of Services. 

• Operational Plan 

• O & M Manuals 
 

This proposal is based in part on the assumption that the District acknowledges that WEBB 

Associates is not responsible for the performance of work by third parties. Notwithstanding any 

other language contained herein, WEBB Associates, and its officers, directors, and employees, 

shall not be liable except to the extent that any Project damages are directly attributable to the 

actions of WEBB Associates. 

 

142



West Valley Water District Section 3 

W25037 Bloomington Area Waterline Replacement Project Phase 3C  

COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 
 

3.1 FEE SUMMARY 

 

WEBB is committed to providing services in a skillful, professional and competent manner consistent 

with the industry standards, practices and principles generally recognized as being employed by 

professionals in the same discipline in the County of San Bernardino and the State of California. 

Fees are listed below associated with the scope of work. Based upon the project’s scope of work, a 

summary of WEBB’s construction services budget is as follows: 

Work shall be billed on a time and materials basis not to exceed the amount indicated below 

without prior authorization from the client.  Total fees for services shown in the Scope of Work 

(Exhibit “B”) shall be $145,600. A breakdown of our fees is listed below: 

 

Item No. Description Fee 

1 Construction Management $93,700 

2 Inspection $16,000 

3 Construction Staking $35,900 

 TOTAL $145,600 

 

This proposal and budget are valid for 60 days from date of proposal. 

 

Task budgets are estimates and may be used interchangeably as needed but not to exceed the 

budget total. Any additional services requested outside this scope will be provided under separate 

contract addenda for additional fees. Invoices will be submitted monthly based on the percentage 

of work completed. All invoices shall be due and payable upon receipt. If invoices remain unpaid 

after 30 days, work on project may cease and interest of 1.5% per month shall be charged on 

unpaid balances. 

 

Charges for printing, copying, mileage, postage, outside services, and for coordination or other 

services not specifically listed in the scope of work, will be billed on a time and material basis, in 

accordance with our Schedule of Fees as Reimbursable Expenses.  Checking and/or filing fees 

are not included in this contract and shall be paid by the client directly to the appropriate 

governmental agency.   

 

Costs for custom invoicing, if desired by the client, shall be negotiated prior to commencement of 

work.  

 

 

143



Item Description  C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

 C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 M
a
n

a
g

e
r 

 S
e
n

io
r 

E
n

g
in

e
e
r 

 S
u

rv
e
y
 T

e
n

c
h

n
ic

ia
n

 

In
s
p

e
c
to

r 
(P

W
)

2
-M

a
n

 S
u

rv
e
y
 P

a
rt

y

T
o

ta
l 
H

o
u

rs

S
u

b
to

ta
l 
- 

L
a
b

o
r

E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

T
o

ta
l/
ta

s
k

1

Billout Rate 280$   217$   258$     163$   152$  326$    
Task 1 - Construction Management 59 238 96 393 92,805$   1,000$  93,700$     

Task 2 - Inspection 100 100 15,200$   750$     16,000$     

Task 3 - Construction Staking 4 10 40 80 134 35,890$   -$   35,900$     

63 248 96 40 80 627 143,895$   1,750$  145,600$   

1. Rounded to the nearest $100.

8th Street, Maple Avenue Phase IIIC

WVWD

Total

J:\FORMAL PROPOSALS\West Valley Water District\20250140 - CM and IS for Bloomington Alleyway Project Phase 3C\Manhour Estimate - 2025-04-17 4/21/20253:24 PM144



4 
        7/31/23 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “2” 

TO 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 

COMPENSATION 

Task Description Cost 

1 Construction Management $93,700.00 

2 Inspection $16,000.00 

3 Construction Staking $35,900.00 

4 

Grand Total $145,600.00 

145



5 
                                                                                                                               7/31/23 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 3 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
  

 

Schedule to be determined by District staff. 

 

146





STAFF REPORT

DATE:   July 17, 2025

TO:         Board of Directors

FROM:  Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT:   Change Order No. 9 with PCL Construction Inc. and Amendment to GHD Inc. Task Order for the Oliver
P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply

A. Increase System Capacity for Anticipated Growth
B. Assess, Repair, Replace, Upgrade Aging Infrastructure
C. Provide Effective Source Water Treatment

Strategic Goal 5 – Apply Sound Planning, Innovation, and Best Practices

B. Explore Innovative Solutions and Implement When Feasible and Cost-Effective

MEETING HISTORY:

Special Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting - 06.25.2025

BACKGROUND:

In February 2023 the Board of Directors approved a $3,000,000 construction contingency for the Oliver P. Roemer
Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion project which was set aside for unexpected costs during
construction.  Construction contingency is a form of risk management used to avoid cutting costs, to keep the
project’s schedule on track and to ensure material and workmanship quality.  It is also used to cover other costs
such as:

Unknown underground conflicts
Unforeseen conditions and services
Owner-requested changes and/or design upgrades and modifications

Unexpected costs are inevitable on a project of this magnitude and within the current unpredictable
construction/procurement environment.  Identifying the need for the unexpected cost through a change order and
managing them as they arise are key to the project’s success.

To date, the District has approved 8 change orders with PCL Construction Inc. (Design-Builder) to address project
needs.   

147



GHD, Inc. (GHD) has been providing Professional Engineering Services to the District for the Oliver P. Roemer
Water Filtration Facility Expansion Project, including project/construction management, site inspection services,
and other engineering services during construction. Additionally, GHD and it’s teaming partners prepared the 30%
design documents, assisting the District with the Design Build Team selection/on-boarding.

GHD has been acting as the “Owner’s Agent” for the construction phase of the Project. GHD’s responsibilities as
the Owners Agent are to review all the of the Design Builders work product, oversee construction, commissioning
activities, post construction tasks and warranty phase to ensure successful completion of the project.  The services
being provided by GHD include:

Construction Management (full time onsite presence via resident engineer)
Project Management
Submittal Reviews
Requests for Information Management and Responses
Change Order and Progress Payment Management
Permitting and Compliance items
Commissioning Support
Project Closeout Planning and Support
Acceptance Testing coordination
Post Construction and Warranty Phase support

The nature of an Owner’s Agent role is driven by the schedule and activities of the Design Build partner and often
requires quick decisions on items that could not have been foreseen when the original professional services
agreement was developed. The current PSA with GHD includes a “burn rate and schedule approach” to ensure
adequate and timely oversight of the Design Build partner, which assumed a project completion of approximately
July 2025.

DISCUSSION:

The current contractual completion month for the project is June 2025, supply chain challenges associated with the
final two motor control centers have impacted the construction schedule, extending the expected project
completion date to December 2025.  This delay could result in the assessment of liquidated damages at the
completion of the project against the Design-Builder. Staff notified the Design-Build team of the delay and offered to
participate in negotiations to develop a Recovery Plan to ensure the project is completed successfully.

A Recovery Plan is risk management tool for Owners to address contractual disputes with Design-Build partners. A
Recovery Plan is a process identified by Design Build Institute of America as a best practice to identify project
challenges, develop solutions, and implement them to ensure projects are completed successfully.

Through negotiations, staff and the Design Build partner have proposed a solution that would extend the contract
duration by 209 days to reflect a December 2025 project completion date in exchange for work already performed
or soon to be performed that were change conditions in addition to allowances for future change conditions.

Attached as Exhibit A is Change Order 9 for the above reference project.  This change order includes extra items
of work arising from existing paving conditions, operations requests, landscaping improvement requests, work
schedule modifications, allowances, and minor miscellaneous items.  A brief description of the recommended
changes included in the change order is provided below:

1. Paving Revisions: Following construction and trenching of treatment plant roadways, it was identified that the
current pavement did not meet current high traffic roadway requirements. The Design Builder proposed a
solution that would replace the current roadways with an improved pavement section in high traffic areas and
slurry seal the light traffic areas. This solution will provide a uniform looking pavement in the treatment plant
and be an improvement to the current pavement design.

148



2.  Operator Requests: As the project is nearing completion and items are being constructed Operation and
District Staff are better able to identify project additions that were not readily apparent during the design
phase of the project. These requests include: 1) planter box relocation's, 2) sink replacements, 3) wall
mounted analyzer relocation's, and 4) addition of a trash enclosure.

3. Landscaping Improvements: Following rain events this year it was identified that the current landscape design
along Riverside Avenue would benefit from Benda board to separate decomposed granite from mulched
areas. This item would install the bender board and perform other small improvements to help with the long-
term maintainability of the roadway frontage landscaping around the treatment plant.

4. Work Schedule Modifications: During the construction of the project the Design Builder began work on
Recovery Ponds 1-4, consistent with their approved project schedule. However, during that work, the
Recovery Ponds 5 and 6 return pumps experienced a mechanical failure, to maintain plant operations and
continue construction progress, staff requested the Design Builder modify the work schedule to complete
Pond 5 and 6 first. This change in schedule resulted in additional costs for trades staff to expedite the Ponds
5 and 6 work.

5. Allowances: As the project nears completion and Operations staff begin to operate the installed upgrades
several small items are being identified that could be improved. Recognizing the main Programmable Logic
Controller cut over still remains and commissioning activities need to occur for most of the installed upgrades
it is expected that future changes will likely be needed to complete the project. This item will provide staff with
the tools to address any needs changes quickly. If these allowances are not used by the end of the project,
staff will request a credit back from the Design Builder which could be withheld from the Retention Release.

�. Minor Miscellaneous Items: An existing bypass valve at the hydro-electric generation required position
indication and feedback for remote control that was installed by the Design Builder. 

This change order adds 209 of excusable but non-compensable time to reflect the current proposed contract
duration, with an expected completion date in December 2025 and 67 allowable Plant shutdown days.

To continue support of the project as the Owner’s Agent, GHD has provided a proposal to continue their activities
throughout the completion of the project, that proposal is included in the attached Exhibit B-Draft Amendment to
Task Order 1. GHD is proposing a fee that includes a monthly burn rate of $85,000 per month, with limited services
during the months of August and September, when construction activities are expected to be minimal, and
resuming until the completion of the project.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The added cost to perform the additional work as outlined in Change Order No. 9 is $0 and has no net financial
impact on the contract amount with PCL. The existing construction contingency which remains $1,750,840 and
available for any future change orders, if needed.

The cost to continue to perform the construction management and various other engineering services with GHD
during construction as presented in the Task Order Amendment is $496,250.00.  Sufficient funds are available in
the project budget under W19041 to cover the proposed additional services.

REQUESTED ACTION:
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors to:

1. Approve Change Order No. 9 with PCL Construction, Inc. adding 209 days of excusable but non-
compensable time to the allowable contract duration and 67 allowable Scheduled Plant Shutdown days to the
contract.

2. Approve an Amendment to the Task Order Number 1 for an amount not-to-exceed $496,250.00 with GHD Inc.
for the Oliver P. Roemer WFF Upgrade and Expansion Project and;

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents.

149



 

Attachments

Exhibit A - PCL CHange Order No. 9.pdf
Exhibit B - Draft Amendment to Task Order No. 1 - GHD.pdf

150

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F686d8ee06dd5c300726afc42%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20PCL%20CHange%20Order%20No.%209.pdf?alt=media&token=4cd819cd-6f95-4dd0-bbbd-c6fe5861c8dc
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F686d8ee06dd5c300726afc42%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20PCL%20CHange%20Order%20No.%209.pdf?alt=media&token=4cd819cd-6f95-4dd0-bbbd-c6fe5861c8dc
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F686d8ee06dd5c300726afc42%2FExhibit%20A%20-%20PCL%20CHange%20Order%20No.%209.pdf?alt=media&token=4cd819cd-6f95-4dd0-bbbd-c6fe5861c8dc
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F686d8ee06dd5c300726afc42%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20Draft%20Amendment%20to%20Task%20Order%20No.%201%20-%20GHD.pdf?alt=media&token=bf7b1f53-c9fc-4088-be83-b5931d71c5c3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F686d8ee06dd5c300726afc42%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20Draft%20Amendment%20to%20Task%20Order%20No.%201%20-%20GHD.pdf?alt=media&token=bf7b1f53-c9fc-4088-be83-b5931d71c5c3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/wvwd%2Factions%2F686d8ee06dd5c300726afc42%2FExhibit%20B%20-%20Draft%20Amendment%20to%20Task%20Order%20No.%201%20-%20GHD.pdf?alt=media&token=bf7b1f53-c9fc-4088-be83-b5931d71c5c3


WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 

 

  

 CHANGE ORDER 

 

                                                                  Order No.  9 

                                                                 Date 6/17/2025 

                                                                  Agreement Date 10/31/2022 

                                                                  Sheet  1  of  3  

 

Owner: West Valley Water District        

 

Project: Oliver P Roemer Water Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion   

 

Contractor: PCL Construction, Inc 

 

The following changes are hereby made to the Contract Documents: 

 

 

ITEM 

NO. 

EXTRA WORK DESCRIPTION ADD DEDUCT CALENDAR 

DAYS 

1 Paving Revisions $98,090.16  - 

2 Operator Requests $76,992.84  - 

3 Landscaping Improvements $29,803.51  - 

4 Work Schedule Modifications $11,867.69  - 

5 Allowances $321,283.20  - 

6 Minor Miscellaneous Items $1,045.80  - 

7 Lump Sum Credit for Schedule 

Adjustment 

 $539,083.20  

 TOTALS  $0 - 

TOTALS FOR CHANGE ORDER NO. 9                            $0 209 calendar days 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

Attached as Exhibit A is Change Order No. 9 for the above referenced project.  This change order 

includes “extra” items of work arising from unforeseen condition conflicts with proposed 

improvements, lack of accurate as-built records and/or malfunctioning existing equipment, and 

owner requested changes. These items will be provided to the West Valley Water District at no 

change and a time extension will be granted to PCL until the end of the project. A brief description 

of the recommended changes included in the change order is provided below: 

 

1. Paving Revisions: Following construction and trenching of treatment plant 

roadways, it was identified that the current pavement did not meet current high traffic roadway 

requirements. The Design Builder proposed a solution that would replace the current roadways 

with an improved pavement section in high traffic areas and slurry seal the light traffic areas. This 

solution will provide a uniform looking pavement in the treatment plant and be an improvement 

to the current pavement design.   

 

2. Operator Requests: As the project is nearing completion and items are being 
151



constructed Operation and District Staff are better able to identify project additions that were not 

readily apparent during the design phase of the project. These requests include: 1) planter box 

relocations, 2) sink replacements, 3) wall mounted analyzer relocations, and 4) addition of a trash 

enclosure.  

 

3. Landscaping Improvements: Following rain events this year it was identified 

that the current landscape design along Riverside Avenue would benefit from bender board to 

separate decomposed granite from mulched areas. This item would install the bender board and 

perform other small improvements to help with the long-term maintainability of the roadway 

frontage around the treatment plant.  

 

4. Work Schedule Modifications: During the construction of the project the 

Design- Builder began work on Recovery Ponds 1-4, consistent with their approved project 

schedule. However, during that work, the Recovery Ponds 5 and 6 Return Pumps experienced a 

mechanical failure, to maintain plan operations and continue construction progress staff requested 

the Design-Builder modify the work schedule to complete Pond 5 and 6 first. This change in 

schedule resulted in additional costs for trades staff expediting the Ponds 5 and 6 work.  

 

5. Allowances: As the project nears completion and Operations staff begin to 

operate the installed upgrades several small items are being identified that could be improved. 

Recognizing the main Programable Logic Controller cutover still remains and commissioning 

activities need to occur for most of the installed upgrades it is expected that future changes will 

likely be needed to complete the project. This item will provide staff with the tools to address any 

needs changes quickly. If these allowances are not used by the end of the project, staff will request 

a credit back from the Design-Builder which could be withheld from the Retention Release.  

 

6. Minor Miscellaneous Items: An existing bypass valve at the hydro-electric 

generation was previously only operable from the plant control system, this work modified a local 

control panel with status feedback for local manual control to be installed by the Design-Builder.  

 

Time impacts to the project schedule result from this change order. The impact allows for a 

schedule extension to December 25, 2025.   

 

CHANGE TO CONTRACT PRICE 

 

Original Contract Price       $ 59,116,871.00 

 

Current Contract Price Adjusted 

by Previous Change Order(s)       $ 60,366,030.97 

 

Contract Price due to this Change Order 

shall be unchanged                         $0.00 

 

New Contract Price including this Change Order     $ 60,366,030.97 
 

 

 

 

CHANGE TO CONTRACT TIME 

 152



Contract Time will be            209   

         (Calendar Days) 

 

Date for Completion of all Work      12/25/2025   

                 (Date) 

 

REQUIRED APPROVALS: 

 

To be effective, this Change Order must be approved by the Owner, or as may otherwise be 

required by the Supplemental General Conditions.   

 

 

     Alejandro Juarez 

___________________________  ______________________  ___6/17/2025_____  

Requested By (Contractor)  (Print Name)     Date 

 

     Paul Hermann 

___________________________  _______________________  __________________  

Recommended By    (Print Name)     Date 

(Project Manager) 

 

     Rocky Welborn 

___________________________  _______________________  __________________  

Recommended By   (Print Name)     Date 

(Director of Engineering) 

 

     John Thiel 

___________________________  _______________________  __________________  

Recommended By   (Print Name)     Date 

(General Manager) 

 

___________________________  _______________________  __________________  

Accepted By (Owner)   (Print Name)     Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
153



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A 

For Item #1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
154



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 110 

Long Beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
May 22, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader - GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line P.O. Box 920 
Rialto, CA 92377 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
RE: Differing Site Conditions - Unforeseen conditions Inside the Plant Affecting Paving – Oliver P Roemer Water 
Filtration Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project – Request for Change  

Mr. Hermann and Mr. Rocky, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request, addressing the cost impacts associated with unforeseen 
conditions encountered during the paving work inside the facility. 

It was brought to our attention when we had the paving contractor conduct a pre-walk that the existing pavement inside 

the plant does not have the thickness required in order to achieve a successful 2” grind and overlay. At least a 4” 

minimum existing asphalt thickness is recommended and currently the majority of the existing pavement is below 4”. It 

was also discovered that the existing asphalt only has native soil not a structural base underneath. The District has 

accepted the current existing conditions and the approach of paving over existing native soil. 

This was communicated and confirmed with GHD on 4/16/2025. This issue only affects original contract areas scoped for 
a grind and overlay. Areas that would receive new structural base and asphalt pavement were not affected and this work 
proceeded as scheduled on 4/17/2025. This existing paving scope was not touched since it was still being discussed. The 
paving contractor demobilized 5/2/2025 and will return once the final scope is clarified. Remobilization fees will not be 
charged to the District. 

Several discussions and walks with GHD, Stantec, and the District have taken place to provide the best cost-effective 
alternatives for the paving change in scope. Scope proposals were sent on 4/25/2025, 5/16/2025, and now this latest 
revision with the credits listed below. 

Credits: 

1. The District was owed a 2” grind and pave for all the existing asphalt. The complete line item value of $194,340 
is being discounted since this scope is no longer feasible. This was intended to be done in conjunction with the 
6” slot patch for trench restorations in existing asphalt, see below. 

2. The District was owed a 6” thick restoration for all trenched areas in existing asphalt pavement. The complete 
line item value of $11,340 is being discounted since this scope is no longer of interest since the new proposition 
is to remove and replace 4” from grade. The bottom 2” of the 6” from the original scope was already provided 
as structural base by PCL, and will remain in place, however the entire line item of 6” will be refunded to the 
District in good faith and for practical estimating purposes. PCL finds it noteworthy that only 1,080 SF of trench 

155

http://www.pcl.com/


 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 110 

Long Beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

repairs was estimated for the project, and in actuality over 4000 SF of structural trench repair was provided 
due to design growth. 

3. There are some areas that were identified with an unusually thick asphalt. These would have been candidates 
for a 2” grind and pave, however due to the more than anticipated trenching, it was not productive to perform 
a 2” grind and pave for only that area. PCL is issuing a $31,336 credit for this area identified in a green shade 
between the Chemical Building and Pre-Treatment. This was done in good faith, and to remain consistent with 
what was offered at the start of conversations, since this credit is technically already being issued in Credits 1 & 
2. Ultimately, this area is being proposed for a 4” removal as replacement.  

 

Credits 1 & 2 scopes accounted for conditions based on a sufficient asphalt thickness and assumed structural type media 

underneath the existing asphalt. In light of the new existing conditions the scopes of Credits 1 & 2 are no longer 

applicable and have been removed, bringing the scope back to zero for the existing asphalt areas. Building a new scope 

moving forward are the areas shaded Pink and Blue. Yellow shaded areas is scope completed under original contract or 

approved change order work, not affecting the Credit 1 & 2 line items. Latest prices are based on full credit of removed 

scope that will not be completed and full price of new scope that is to be completed. Below is a list of the new proposed 

scopes.  

 

New Proposed Scopes: 

A. Option A (REJECTED): Full removal and replacement of all existing asphalt. This option would combine both the pink and 
blue areas for full removal of the top 4” of mixed material and replacement with a new 4” layer of asphalt over 
existing native soil. The total for this option is $291,158.39, including credits to the District.  

B. Option B (SELECTED): An alternate to full removal and replacement of the same aforementioned areas includes substituting 
the blue areas for a slurry seal only instead of full replacement. The entire existing asphalt was assessed, and 
due to minimum deterioration and wear, lower-trafficked blue areas were identified as good candidates for a 
slurry only option. Within the blue areas there will be some minor local patches to 4” of replaced material, 
approximating 600 SF, and these areas will also be slurried over. Pink areas are still recommended for full 
replacement. The total for this option is $98,090.16, including credits to the District. 
 

Stantec determined that long lifespan of asphalt is typically correlated with a strong structural base layer. Other factors 

are also at play, which affect the lifespan of asphalt are weather, traffic, asphalt mix etc. Historically, there are areas of 

existing asphalt that are in significantly better condition than expected given the native soil layer. For the 2 options 

provided, allowing native soil as the structural layer, full asphalt replacement will result in the longest expected lifespan.  

Below is a summary of the pricing associated with the additional labor and material efforts. If you have any questions, 

please do not hesitate to contact us. 

1. PCL Paving Plan Areas with Alternates 
2. Alternate Plan A Pricing Breakdown 
3. Alternate Plan B Pricing Breakdown 
4. Contract Documents with Hardy and Harper Supporting Credit Amounts 
5. Hardy & Harper Pricing Explained 
6. Notice of Inadequate Existing Asphalt Thickness 
7. District Confirmation of Paving Over Native Soil 

 
Sincerely, 

  
Alejandro Juarez 

156

http://www.pcl.com/


 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Suite 110 

Long Beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com 

157

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:ajuarez@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 5/22/25

ESTIMATOR: AXJ

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                            

EQUIPMENT -$                            

MATERIALS -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR CREDITS INCLUDED 93,419.20$             

SUBTOTAL 93,419.20$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                        

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                            

MATERIALS 15% -$                            

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 4,670.96$               

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 4,670.96$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 98,090.16$             

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 98,090.16$     

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 98,090.16$     

DESCRIPTION:
Option B - Slurry & Replace Existing Asphalt

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # TBD

158



Option B - Slurry & Replace Existing Asphalt DATE 05/22/25

QTY UNIT TOTAL

Labor U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

98.56              0.00 -$                      -$                       

EQUIPMENT
60.36$                        -$                                       -$                       

58.60$                        -$                                       -$                       

Vendor Materials
-$                       

Subcontractor

4" Replacement of areas that should not be slurried - Pink 42,434.3 SF 6.20$              263,092.60$               263,092.60$          

4" Replacement of Localized Areas in Blue 600.0 SF 31.20$            18,720.00$                 18,720.00$            

Type 2 Slurry Seal - Blue 40,518.9 SF 1.20$              48,622.68$                 48,622.68$            

Credit from Original Contract for 2" Coldmill and Overlay (94,800.0) SF 2.05$              (194,340.00)$             (194,340.00)$        

Credit from Original Contract for 6" Slot Patch (1,080.0) SF 10.50$            (11,340.00)$               (11,340.00)$           

Credit from PCL - Green (6,667.3) SF 4.70$              (31,336.08)$               (31,336.08)$           

Materials

-$                              0.00 -$                 -$                93,419.20$          93,419.20$      

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                              
OTHER ITEMS 5%
LABOR 25% -$                 
MATERIALS 15% -$                
SUBCONTRACTS 5% 4,670.96$            

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP -$                              -$                 -$                98,090.16$          98,090.16$      

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes: Mobilization will not be charged to the District.

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  

       EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNT SUPPLIED MATERIALS

159



0 80'40'20'

N

LEGEND

(N) AC PAVEMENT

NEW CONC PAVEMENT AS NOTED

2
C-011

3
C-011

4
C-011

GRIND AND REPAVE
(E) AC PAVEMENT, 2 INCHES

SHEET KEYNOTES
1. SIDEWALK PER C-120 SHEET C-010

2. DRIVEWAY PER C-125 SHEET C-010

3. CONCRETE CROSS GUTTER PER DETAIL C-127 SHEET C-010

4. REPLACE CURB AND GUTTER PER CITY OF RIAL TO STANDARD
DRAWING SC-200

SLUDGE POND NO . 1 SLUDGE POND NO. 2

BLENDING POND NO. 1

SLUDGE POND NO. 3

PRETREATMENT
FACILITIES

CEDAR AVE

RI
VE

RS
ID

E 
AV

E

N 
AP

PL
E

AV
E

CHEMICAL
BUILDING

FB2
OPERATIONS

BUILDING

9' 9'
TYP

RECOVERY
PONDS 5&6

FILTER
BUILDING 1

RECOVERY
PONDS 1-4

EPS2

IPS2

APPROX LIMITS OF
(N) PAVEMENT

APPROX LIMITS OF
(N) PAVEMENT

1 2
1

3

PROTECT IN PLACE
EXISTING FENCE UNLESS

NOTED OTHEREWISEPROTECT IN PLACE
EXISTING CONCRETE FOR
SLIDING GATE TRACK

MCC E

MCC F

3

4 4

BLENDING POND NO. 2

±11.6

2

N = 1878519.64
E = 6743431.51

ELEV = ???

N = 1878455.35
E = 6743519.26

FL = ???

R28.00

EXISTING
GRAVEL BASE

EXISTING AC
PAVEMENT±1

2.7

40'-0"

8,727.54 sf

3,387.483 43 sf3 ffffffss33333 s33 3 ssff34

3,819.6 sf33,

2,754.44 sfs444572 44445522 722 455 44 ss77 4 fs222,7,7575454.4.4444 s sfsf44 f

1,702.06 sf,,,77 fs60.21 6002007 27 6 f71 22 ss11,77070202.2.0066 ssfsf,

7,718.25 sf5 s5 sfs52877 1777 ss87 87 228 ss57 77 22 s25 sf888.77,7,771188.2.2555 ssff
3,546.71 sf653 f76644533 s533 64 766 115333,3,554466..7711 ssff546 7546 771 f71 fff

9,408.62 sf2 sf9 4089 4089 408

6,606.67 sff6,

sf1.6 4,1,1,111,11144 1111 644,1111.6

7.388 sf8 s88 sf387555757577775555575

4,442.09 sf4,442.09 sf,,

4,5254,525524,524.6 sf4,524 ffsss666.4442 ffss666444222 ffss66644422255 ff66644422255544,5244 f444 52244.6.6 6 ssff4 524,5242554,5244,5244 552

2,631.183 8183 8863 8 sf8 fssffssss88 s sfsf88888888

5,1275 122777227277727225 225 1222121211111115 22222222222222222222222222 .88 sffsss8888 ffss888888 fsss8888 ff8888888.8888 8 ssff

0 66666666 sfffffffffsssssssfsfss5,140.645 1555 404,55555,1144400.140.6 00.44414400.66 5,5 0 660 60 6

4 sffsffffsfs4,778.94 sf4 sffff444444 s44999888777777444 ff4449, 999.888777777444 4999888777777444 4449998887777774 sf44,74,777788.9.9494 sff4 sf4 sf4 sfsf4 fsfs4 s

3,766.66 sf33 s667 fs6666667,7 66 ss33,766.66 sf33,3,776666.6.6666 6 ssff

EXISTING ACG AC
PAVEMENTPAVE

6,667.25 sf522277766666666 ffsss5552227766666666 ffss55522277766666666 ff552227776666666 66666,666 ffss5566,6,6666767.7.2255 s5 sfsf

.81 sfsf8888881

R28.00
R28.00

122,565.33 sf2,565.33 EXISTING FEFE
NOTED

33

8,9789998,9 878877889778977978 99788888888

11,7511,7552.73 sf25555555555555555555552.73 sf552 7 fffsffssf3 ss33 s73373373222.52255255555555555555

sffs6,288.07 sf6 fs700882 ss77088822 888 70 s26 f,66 8888 70777 fffsfss7 s770770078 0088 0888.888828882288226 266,66,66 sffssssfffssf

1,770.771 sfffffsfssf1 ss11 s117177171

74.52 ssffffsffsfsfs2,4444442 422,22,2 77

1,033.19 sf91 fs9330,1 ff9913330111 3 .3 91 fffs1 330 11 119 sfffsfss9 s99199119113 1333.33330333003300300111

3.03 sf033300 fff3.03 3.03 03030030333003033033033333333000000171777711777171777771111181 11111111

.29 sf.22,415.22222 .2.29.29

3,143.18 343 13,1433,143333,3,33,1443 8818 sfsfsssfffssfsf

160



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A 

For Item #2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

161



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long Beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
May 16, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann  
 
 
RE: Change Order – Installation of Irrigation System for Planter Boxes 

Dear Mr. Hermann, 

This Change Order addresses the installation of an irrigation system for the planter boxes at the Oliver P. Roemer Water 

Filtration Facility as requested by the West Valley Water District. 

Per the District’s direction, this scope of work includes furnishing and installing a complete irrigation system to 

adequately serve all designated planter boxes. These boxes will be relocated to the front of FB1 and ponds 1-4  per the 

District’s request. 

Please note that all work associated with this Change Order, including labor, materials, and coordination, will be 

performed by PCL Construction unless otherwise directed by the District. 

Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com 
  
 

162

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:kgoetz@pcl.com
AJuarez
Rectangle

AJuarez
Image



PCO # TBD

DATE: 5/16/25

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 1,623.44$               

EQUIPMENT 482.88$                  

MATERIALS 284$                       

SUBCONTRACTOR -$                            

SUBTOTAL 2,390.21$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 405.86$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% 96.58$                    

MATERIALS 15% 43$                          

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% -$                            

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 545.02$                  

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 2,935.23$               

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 2,935.23$       

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 2,935.23$       

DESCRIPTION:
Unforeseen Conditions at N Riverside Ave

PCL Construction, Inc.

3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110 Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX # Irrigation System for Planter boxes 

163



Irrigation System for Planter boxes DATE 05/16/25

QTY UNIT TOTAL

Labor U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

Operator Foerman 8.0 HRS 111.70           893.60 893.60$               893.60$                

Laborer   G-4                        8.0 HRS 91.23             729.84 729.84$               729.84$                

EQUIPMENT

Bobcat E-88 R-2 Series 8.0 HR 60.36$                       482.88$                               482.88$                

-$                                     -$                     

-$                     

HR -$                                     

Vendor Materials
Ferguson Planter Box material (PVC ) 1.0 EA 283.89$               283.89$                

Subcontractor
1.0 LS

1.0 LS

Materials

482.88$                        1623.44 1,623.44$       283.89$          -$                     2,390.21$        

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% 96.58$                          
OTHER ITEMS 5%
LABOR 25% 405.86$          
MATERIALS 15% 42.58$            
SUBCONTRACTS 5% -$                     

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP 579.46$                        2,029.30$       326.47$          -$                     2,935.23$        

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes:

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  

       EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNT SUPPLIED MATERIALS

164



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
June 16, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road. 
Rialto, CA  92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
 
RE: Sink SK-1 Replacement 
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Welborn, 

Please find the attached package documenting the proposed upgrade for the new SK-3 sink (the analyzer sink) 

installation, to where the analyzer pipes drain. This is in response to the District request for a larger sink that what was approved. 

West Valley Water District approved the installation of the other 2 sinks SK-1 & SK-2, per Submittal SUM 00971.1. 

Enclosures: 

1.) Corresponding Change Order Including Pricing 
2.) Cost breakdown 
3.) Subcontractor Pricing and Proposed Material 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com  

165

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:ajuarez@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 6/16/25

ESTIMATOR:

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                      

EQUIPMENT -$                      

MATERIALS -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 9,363.62$          

SUBTOTAL 9,363.62$          

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                  

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                      

MATERIALS 15% -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 468.18$             

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 468.18$             

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 9,831.80$          

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 9,831.80$    

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 9,831.80$    

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

SK-1 Sink Replacement

166



DATE 06/16/25

QTY UNIT SUPPLIED MATERIALS TOTAL
U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

LABOR

Material

Equipment

Subcontractor
ISEC - Cutout for Larger Sink 1 LS 4,904$            4,904$            

PPM Larger Sink and Installation and Plumbing 1 LS 4,460$            4,460$            

TOTAL DIRECT COST -$           -$           -$           9,364$       9,364$                  

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% -$           
OTHER ITEMS 5%
LABOR 25% -$           
MATERIALS 15% -$           
SUBCONTRACTS 5% 468$          

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP -$           -$           -$           9,832$       9,831.80$       

SK-1 Sink Replacement

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes:

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  
DESCRIPTION        EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNT

167



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
June 16, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road. 
Rialto, CA  92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
 
RE: Lab Room Analyzers Revisions 
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Welborn, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts associated with reorganizing 

the Analyzers in the New Operations Building. 

The analyzer layout was discussed and approved by May 19, 2025, for which a shutdown was required. Once 

the analyzers were installed, the District noticed optimizations in the layout and revisions that could be made. The 

District purchased new panel boards and directed PCL to remount the analyzers onto the new boards and adjust the 

placement of the previous layout.   

Enclosures: 

1.) Corresponding Change Order Including Pricing 
2.) Cost breakdown 
3.) Email communications  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com  

168

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:ajuarez@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 6/16/25

ESTIMATOR: HP

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 7,496.00$          

EQUIPMENT -$                      

MATERIALS -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR -$                      

SUBTOTAL 7,496.00$          

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,874.00$          

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                      

MATERIALS 15% -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% -$                      

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,874.00$          

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 9,370.00$          

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 9,370.00$    

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 9,370.00$    

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

Analyzer Relocation Retrofit

169



Analyzer Relocation Retrofit DATE 06/16/25

QTY UNIT SUPPLIED MATERIALS TOTAL
U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

LABOR

Labor group 4 40.0 HR 90.40$           3,616.00$                 3,616.00$             

General foreman 40.0 HR 97.00$           3,880.00$                 3,880.00$             

EQUIPMENT

SUBCONTRACT WORK

TOTAL DIRECT COST -$             7,496.00$           -$           -$                 7,496.00$             

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% -$             
OTHER ITEMS 5%
LABOR 25% 1,874.00$           
MATERIALS 15% -$           
SUBCONTRACTS 5% -$                 

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP -$             9,370.00$           -$           -$                 9,370.00$        

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes: Panel boards and strut to mount analyzers to be provided by others. As much hardware as possible to be reused.

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  
DESCRIPTION        EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNT

170



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
June 17, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road. 
Rialto, CA  92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
 
RE: New Trash Enclosure 
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Welborn, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts associated with designing and 

constructing a new trash enclosure. 

This change order including both design and construction was at one point considered but then abandoned. It 

has come up again and the quote has been revised after 2 years and after additional feeback from the plant that they 

would like the walls of the enclosure 2ft taller, 8ft total.   

Enclosures: 

1.) Corresponding Change Order Including Pricing 
2.) Cost breakdown 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com  

171

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:ajuarez@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 6/17/25

ESTIMATOR: GM

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 14,262.64$               

EQUIPMENT 719.04$                    

MATERIALS 5,654.05$                 

SUBCONTRACTOR 28,250.00$               

SUBTOTAL 48,885.73$               

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 3,565.66$                 

EQUIPMENT 20% 143.81$                    

MATERIALS 15% 848.11$                    

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 1,412.50$                 

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 5,970.08$                 

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 54,855.81$               

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 54,855.81$        

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 54,855.81$        

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.
3750 Schaufele Ave., Suite 270, Long Beach, CA 90808

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

New Trash Enclosure

172



New Trash Enclosure PCO # TBD DATE 06/17/25

QTY UNIT SUPPLIED MATERIALS TOTAL
U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

LABOR -$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

Laborer Group 4 - Site Clearing/Salvaging 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 90.14$           721$              -$               -$               721$                      

Equipment Op Group 8 - Site Clearing/Salvaging 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 125.55$         1,004$           -$               -$               1,004$                   

Laborer Group 4 - Grade Checker/Spoter 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 90.14$           721$              -$               -$               721$                      

Equipment Op Group 8 - Excavate SOG 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 125.55$         1,004$           -$               -$               1,004$                   

Equipment Operator Group 8 - Form & Reinforce SOG 2.0 Day -$               8.00               16.0               125.55$         2,009$           -$               -$               2,009$                   

Carpenter - Form and Reinforce SOG 2.0 Day -$               8.00               16.0               91.00$           1,456$           -$               -$               1,456$                   

Laborer Group 4 - Form and Reinforce SOG 2.0 Day -$               8.00               16.0               90.14$           1,442$           -$               -$               1,442$                   

Equipment Operator Group 8 - Pour and Finish SOG 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 125.55$         1,004$           -$               -$               1,004$                   

Carpenter - Pour and Finish SOG 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 91.00$           728$              -$               -$               728$                      

Laborer Group 4 - Pour and Finish SOG 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 90.14$           721$              -$               -$               721$                      

Laborer Group 4 - Backfill Around Slab 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 90.14$           721$              -$               -$               721$                      

Equipment Op Group 8 - Backfill Around Slab 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 125.55$         1,004$           -$               -$               1,004$                   

Laborer Group 4 - Fix Landscaping 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 90.14$           721$              -$               -$               721$                      

Equipment Op Group 8 - Fix Landscaping 1.0 Day -$               8.00               8.0                 125.55$         1,004$           -$               -$               1,004$                   

-$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

EQUIPMENT -$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

Backhoe CAT 416C w/ Backhoe 7.0 Day 60.33$           422$              -                 -$               -$               -$               422$                      

Foreman's Truck - Ford F-150 7.0 Day 42.39$           297$              -                 -$               -$               -$               297$                      

-$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

Vendor -$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

#4 Rebar 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               795.00$         795$              -$               795$                      

Plywood 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               486.99$         487$              -$               487$                      

2x4s 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               262$              262$              -$               262$                      

Concrete 4500 PSI 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               3,152$           3,152$           -$               3,152$                   

8D Smooth Nails 50lb Box 1.0 EA -$               -                 -$               118.30$         118$              -$               118$                      

3" Dobies 50.0 EA -$               -                 -$               0.80$             40$                -$               40$                        

Concrete Wheel Stops 4.0 EA -$               -                 -$               199.95$         800$              -$               800$                      

-$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

-$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

Subcontractor -$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

CMU Contractor 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               -$               18,950$         18,950$         18,950$                 

Stantec Design 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               -$               9,000$           9,000$           9,000$                   

Haul Off Excavation Spoils 1.0 LS -$               -                 -$               -$               300$              300$              300$                      

-$               -                 -$               -$               -$               -$                       

TOTAL DIRECT COST 719$          136.0         14,263$     5,654$       28,250$     48,886$                 

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% 144$          
OTHER ITEMS 5%
LABOR 25% 3,566$       
MATERIALS 15% 848$          
SUBCONTRACTS 5% 1,413$       

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP 863$          17,828$     6,502$       29,663$     54,855.81$      

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes: Trash Bins to be provided by owner/trash collection service. CMU install assumed next to the existing antenna per operations. Slab for Enclosure 

assume to be 4500PSI Concrete. 3 sided enclosure only. 

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  
DESCRIPTION        EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNT

173



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A 

For Item #3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

174



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
June 16, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road. 
Rialto, CA  92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
 
RE: Mariposa Landscape Items 
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Welborn, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts associated with adding the 

items recommended by Mariposa Landscape in February 2025 which were not part of the scope for the project. 

After review of the DCR we did not find headerboard or irrigation indicators called out for the project, therefore 

it was not included. Mariposa recommended these 2 items in addition to items that were repaired in the punchlist walk 

with Marina, PCL’s subcontractor.  

Enclosures: 

1.) Corresponding Change Order Including Pricing 
2.) Cost breakdown 
3.) Subcontractor Pricing and Proposed Material 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com  

175

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:ajuarez@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 6/16/25

ESTIMATOR: AXJ

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                             

EQUIPMENT -$                             

MATERIALS 1,889.94$                

SUBCONTRACTOR 26,314.37$              

SUBTOTAL 28,204.31$              

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                             

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                             

MATERIALS 15% 283.49$                   

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 1,315.72$                

BOND ON DIRECT WORK 0% -$                             

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,599.21$                

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 29,803.51$              

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 29,803.51$      

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 29,803.51$      

DESCRIPTION:
Mariposa Landscape Items

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way,Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

CRX-TBD - Mariposa Landscape Items

176



Mariposa Landscape Items CRX # TBD DATE 06/16/25

QTY UNIT SUPPLIED MATERIALS TOTAL

Labor U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

No PCL Labor

EQUIPMENT 

No PCL equipment -$       

Vendor Materials 

No PCL vendor materials

Subcontractor

Marina estimate for headerboard 1.0 LS $18,990.53 18,990.53$          

System Indicator Kit +Tax 50.0 QTY 37.80$           1,890$                  

Estimated Truck for Indicator Kit 36.0 HRS 30$                1,080$                 

Estimated Labor for Indicator Kit 72.0 HRS 86.72$           6,244$                 

-$    -$                   1,889.94$          26,314.37$        -$                  

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% -$    
OTHER ITEMS 5% -$  
LABOR 25% -$                   

MATERIALS 15% 283.49$             

SUBCONTRACTS 5% 1,315.72$          

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP -$    -$  -$                   2,173.43$          27,630.09$        29,803.51$       

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes:

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  
       EQUIP      S.T. & S.* MANHOURS      AMOUNT

177



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A 

For Item #4 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

178



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
June 10, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road. 
Rialto, CA  92377 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
RE: Pump Rework at Recovery Pond 1-4 
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Welborn, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request to bring Pump #1 and #2 at Recovery Pond 1-4 back 

into service due to the failure of the existing Pump #3 and #4 at Recovery Pond 5&6 on 2/13/2025 after PCL and LEED 

had already commenced demolition of the above ground pipe and electrical wires at Pond 1-4. Per WVWD’s request to 

bring Pump #1 and #2 at Pond 1-4 back online, PCL and LEED have reallocated resources on 2/13/2025 to work on the 

needed tasks including re-pulling wire from the hand hole at East of the Ponds and re-installing the mechanical discharge 

piping associated with Pump #1 and #2. On 2/28/2025, PCL notified WVWD that one of the pumps at Pond 1-4 failed 

which required troubleshooting. During this time, PCL also helped bringing down the wet well level with sump pumps so 

that WVWD could inspect access the remaining pump. All mentioned activities were communicated with WVWD, 

tracked on T&M basis, and captured in the Change Request. This Change Request also includes associated equipment 

and material cost. 

Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
AJuarez@pcl.com  
  
 

179

http://www.pcl.com/


PCO # TBD

DATE: 6/11/25

ESTIMATOR: HP

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR 5,306.35$          

EQUIPMENT 1,102.92$          

MATERIALS -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 3,725.00$          

SUBTOTAL 10,134.27$        

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% 1,326.59$          

EQUIPMENT 20% 220.58$             

MATERIALS 15% -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 186.25$             

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 1,733.42$          

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 11,867.69$        

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 11,867.69$  

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 11,867.69$  

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.

3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

Pump Rework at Recovery Pond 1-4

180



Pump Rework at Recovery Pond 1-4 DATE 06/11/25

QTY UNIT SUPPLIED MATERIALS TOTAL
U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

Labor
T&M for 2/13/2025 from PCL 1.0 LS 871.30$                    871.30$                

T&M for 2/14/2025 from PCL 1.0 LS 2,099.13$                 2,099.13$             

T&M for 2/26/2025 from PCL 1.0 LS 1,432.16$                 1,432.16$             

T&M for 2/28/2025 from PCL 1.0 LS 903.76$                    903.76$                

Equipment

1/2 ton pickup truck 12.0 HR 37.19$           446.28$         446.28$                

10K fork lift 8.0 HR 82.08$           656.64$         656.64$                

Subcontractor

T&M for 2/14/2025 from LEED 1.0 HR 3,725.00$      3,725.00$             3,725.00$             

TOTAL DIRECT COST 1,102.92$  5,306.35$            -$           3,725.00$        10,134.27$           

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% 220.58$     

OTHER ITEMS 5%

LABOR 25% 1,326.59$            

MATERIALS 15% -$           

SUBCONTRACTS 5% 186.25$           

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP 1,323.50$  6,632.94$            -$           3,911.25$        11,867.69$      

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes:

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  

       EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNTDESCRIPTION

181



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit A 

For Item #6 

 

 

182



 
 

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC. 
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110 

Long beach, CA 90806 

Telephone: (858) 657-3400  Website: www.pcl.com 

 

 
June 16, 2025 
 
Paul Hermann 
Water Market Leader 
GHD 
320 Goddard Way, Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92618 
 
Rocky Welborn 
West Valley Water District 
855 W. Base Line Road. 
Rialto, CA  92377 
 
 
Attn: Paul Hermann and Rocky Welborn 
 
 
RE: Hydrostation Bypass Feature 
 
Mr. Hermann and Mr. Welborn, 

Please accept the attached package as a Change Request due to the cost impacts associated with adding a 

bypass feature to the hydrostation. 

During the commissioning of the hydrostation it was discovered that there is no way to manually open the valve 

that would permit a bypass of the influent water from the hydrostation to the plant. The bypass currently only works 

with SCADA. Operations would like to add a manual override in the scenario where SCADA is non responsive. This will 

allow water to feed the plant regardless of SCADA and or hydrostation activity using a manual method. LEED has verbally 

provided an estimate for T&M of under 1k, this does not include markup.  

Enclosures: 

1.) Corresponding Change Order Including Pricing 
2.) Cost breakdown 

 
Sincerely, 

 

Alejandro Juarez 
Project Manager 
ajuarez@pcl.com  

183

http://www.pcl.com/
mailto:ajuarez@pcl.com


PCO # TBD

DATE: 6/16/25

ESTIMATOR: HP

DIRECT ESTIMATE

LABOR -$                      

EQUIPMENT -$                      

MATERIALS -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 996.00$             

SUBTOTAL 996.00$             

DIRECT MARKUP

LABOR 25% -$                      

EQUIPMENT 20% -$                      

MATERIALS 15% -$                      

SUBCONTRACTOR 5% 49.80$               

SUBTOTAL MARKUP 49.80$               

SUBTOTAL WITH DIRECT MARKUP 1,045.80$          

TOTAL ADDITIONAL WORK 1,045.80$    

GRAND TOTAL THIS CHANGE 1,045.80$    

DESCRIPTION:

PCL Construction, Inc.
3900 Kilroy Airport Way, Ste 110, Long Beach, CA 90806

CHANGE ORDER PROPOSAL

PROJECT: Oliver P. Roemer WFF 2021 Expansion 

Hydrostation Bypass Feature

184



Hydrostation Bypass Feature DATE 06/16/25

QTY UNIT SUPPLIED MATERIALS TOTAL
U.P. TOTAL MH/UNIT TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL U.P. TOTAL

LABOR

EQUIPMENT

SUBCONTRACT WORK

LEED estimated T&M 1.0 LS 996.00$         996.00$                

TOTAL DIRECT COST -$             -$                    -$           996.00$           996.00$                

MARKUPS

EQUIPMENT 20% -$             

OTHER ITEMS 5%

LABOR 25% -$                    

MATERIALS 15% -$           

SUBCONTRACTS 5% 49.80$             

SUBTOTALS WITH MARKUP -$             -$                    -$           1,045.80$        1,045.80$        

SUBCONTRACTOR

Notes:

           LABOR EXPENSE VENDOR  

DESCRIPTION        EQUIP MANHOURS      AMOUNT

185



EXHIBIT  

186



1 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 7/31/23 Master Copy 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 to TASK ORDER NO. 1 

Professional Engineering Services for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration 
Facility Upgrade and Expansion Project 

 

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this _______ day of _______________, 2025 
by and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California 
(“District”) and GHD Inc., (“Consultant”). 

RECITALS 

A. On or about  April 4, 2024 District and Consultant executed that certain Agreement 
for Professional Services (“Agreement”). 

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time, 
for the provision of certain services provided by Consultant. 

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task 
Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which 
Consultant shall render certain services to the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto 
and by this reference incorporated herein. 

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement and this Task Order, District shall pay 
to Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein.  The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual 
expenses, may not exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional 
compensation is approved in writing by the District. 

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with 
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated 
herein.  Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed 
from the District.  District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by 
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges 
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk. 

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order.  As such, the terms 
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

187



2 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 7/31/23 Master Copy 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed 
effective as of the day and year first above written. 

 
DISTRICT: 
 
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, 
a public agency of the State of California 

 

By _______________________________________    
John Thiel, General Manager 

 
 
 
By _______________________________________ 
 Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary 
 
 
 
CONSULTANT: 
 
GHD, INC. 
 
 
By        
 

Name  Paul Herman     
 
Its Vice President/Principal               

188



3 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 7/31/23 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “1” 
 

TO 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 to TASK ORDER NO. 1 
 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The purpose of the scope of services is to outline the tasks that are necessary to complete 
Professional Engineering Services for the Oliver P. Roemer Water Filtration Facility 
Upgrade and Expansion Project for West Valley Water District (District) as described per 
the attached letter proposal dated June 3, 2025.  The letter and supporting document are 
incorporated by reference to this Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1. 
 
 
 
 
  

189



 
 
 
 
 

 

320 Goddard Way, Suite 200  
Irvine, CA 92618       
USA 
www.ghd.com 

 

11214029  |  Water Filtration Facility Expansion       
 

Our ref: 11214029 
 
 
03 June 2025 

Mr. Rocky Welborn  
Engineering Manager  
West Valley Water District  
855 W. Base Line Rd.  
Rialto, CA 92376 
rwelborn@wvwd.org 

Re: Change Order request for Owner’s Engineering Services for the Oliver P. Roemer Water 
Filtration Facility Upgrades and Expansion Project  

Dear Mr. Welborn, 

GHD Inc. (GHD) is pleased to continue to provide professional Owner’s Engineering services for the Oliver 
P. Roemer Filtration Facility Upgrades and Expansion Project.  We have outlined below our current 
activities, changes to the original scope which has resulted in the development of this change order 
request, and then the works required for completion.    

This Change Order request is intended to be a continuation of the existing contract GHD has with West 
Valley Water District, with all terms and conditions to remain unchanged.   

CURRENT ACTIVITIES  

GHD and its teaming partners continue to perform a wide variety of Owner’s Engineering Services.  These 
include, but are not limited to the following:  

• Construction Management (full time site presence) 

• Project Management 

• Submittal Reviews 

• RFI management and response  

• Change Order and Progress Payments Management  

• Permitting and Compliance items, e.g. DDW meetings and reporting 

• Commissioning activities  

• Punchlisting  

REASON FOR CHANGE ORDER    

The reason for the change order is the extension of the contract period, which currently shows Project 
Completion to the end of the year.   

WORK STILL TO COMPLETE  

All of the work tasks as stated above in the “Current Activities” section, in addition to those related to project 
completion as stated below:  

• Commissioning Phase  
• Project Completion activities 

190

http://www.ghd.com/


11214029  |  Water Filtration Facility Expansion  

• Acceptance Test activities  
• Close out / punchlisting activities  
• Post Construction & Warranty Phase  

COMPENSATION  

Due to the nature of OE contracts, the development of a traditional task and cost breakdown has not been 
completed here, in favor of a burn rate and schedule approach.  This continues to be necessary so that all 
tasks can be addressed immediately without the concern of how out-of-scope tasks are compensated for.  
A summary table has been provided below, noting the total being $496,250.  

 
We have included some minor contingencies and anticipate all works to be completed by the end of 2025.   

We appreciate this opportunity to submit this change order request and thank you for the consideration.  
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any comments or questions. 

 

Regards 
 
 
 
 
Paul Hermann  
Project Manager 
949-878-7735 
paul.hermann@ghd.com 

 

 

85,000.00$    Monthly Burn Rate 

June 63,750.00$    Remaining budget does cover some of June
July 85,000.00$    Full  month 
August 21,250.00$    1/4 time - PCL off site
September 21,250.00$    1/4 time - PCL off site
October 85,000.00$    Full  month 
November 85,000.00$    Full  month 
December 85,000.00$    Full  month 

Contingency 50,000.00$    

496,250.00$ 

191



4 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 7/31/23 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “2” 
 

TO 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 to TASK ORDER NO. 1 
 
 

COMPENSATION 
 

Due to the nature of OE contracts, the development of a traditional task and cost 
breakdown has not been completed here, in favor of a burn rate and schedule approach. 
This continues to be necessary so that all tasks can be addressed immediately without 
the concern of how out-of-scope tasks are compensated for. A summary table has been 
provided below, noting the total being $496,250. 
 
Included are some minor contingencies.  
 

 $85,000.00 Monthly Burn Rate 

   

June $63,750.00 Remaining budget does cover some of June 

July $85,000.00 Full month 

August $21,250.00 ¼ time – PCL off site 

September $21,250.00 ¼ time – PCL off site 

October $85,000.00 Full month 

November $85,000.00 Full month 

December $85,000.00 Full month  

   

Contingency $50,000.00  

   

 $496,250.00  

 
 
 
 
 

192



5 
                                                                                                                        Rev. 7/31/23 Master Copy 

EXHIBIT “3” 
 

TO 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 to TASK ORDER NO. 1 
 
 

SCHEDULE 
  

 

All anticipated work is to be completed by the end of 2025.  

 

193


	RegularBoardMeeting-2025-07-18
	06.26.25 BOD Adjourned Regular Meeting Minutes
	Item 2. 
	Exhibit A - WICA
	Item 1. 
	Exhibit A - Bid Forms
	Item 2. 
	Exhibit A - MJC Change Order 1
	Item 3. 
	Exhibit A - TK Construction Bid
	Exhibit B - New Task Order with Webb
	Item 4. 
	Exhibit A - PCL CHange Order No. 9
	Exhibit B - Draft Amendment to Task Order No. 1 - GHD
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



